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ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

MEETING – APRIL 24, 2008

(Time Noted – 7:06 PM)

CHAIRPERSON CARDONE: I’d like to call the meeting of the ZBA to order. The first order of business is the Public Hearing scheduled for today. The procedure of this Board is that the applicant will be called upon to step forward, state their request and explain why it should be granted. The Board will then ask the applicant any questions it may have and then any questions or comments from the public will be entertained. After all of the Public Hearings have been completed the Board may adjourn to confer with Counsel regarding any legal questions it may have. Then the Board will consider the applications in the order heard. The Board will try to render a decision on all applications this evening; but the Board may take up to 62 days to reach a determination. I would ask that when anyone is speaking please use the microphones and also if anyone has a cell phone to please turn it off the cell phone so that won't be interrupted. I'd also like to mention that the Members of the Board do make site visits. I have a letter regarding the Huda Application. I don't know if anyone is here concerning that application or not. I will read the letter. 

I write to respectfully request that the Public Hearing in the above matter which has been continued for tonight's agenda be adjourned one month to the May 22, 2008 Board meeting. Sincerely, Daniel J. Bloom who is the attorney for that particular application. 

Do we have a motion to that effect?

Mr. Hughes: I have some questions. Is there anyone here for that and can they be heard or if they are…before we get going? 

Chairperson Cardone: We could give them the date of next Public Hearing.

Mr. Hughes: Yes. The other thing that I would like to bring to the attention to the public, it's not only do we go out to the site to see what's going on but we have an unusual situation here with only four Board Members. If Counsel could…

Chairperson Cardone: We have five members.

Mr. Hughes: Oh, we do? Oh, O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, Jim showed up.

Mr. Hughes: Oh, O.K. I'm sorry.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion?

Ms. Drake: I make a motion to extend them until the next meeting May 22nd.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ronald Hughes: Yes



          James Manley: Abstain

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes



      Ruth Eaton: Absent

Michael Maher: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. So, if anyone is interested in that application the Public Hearing will be held on Thursday, May the 22nd, 2008.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RONALD HUGHES

JAMES MANLEY








DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.


RUTH EATON  - ABSENT

MICHAEL MAHER - ABSENT

 (Time Noted – 7:10 PM)

ZBA MEETING – APRIL 24, 2008              (Time Noted – 7:10 PM) 


JOHN WARNER 


165 LATTINTOWN ROAD, NBGH

(CANDLESTICK PARK, LLC)  
(7-1-38.12) A/R ZONE 

Applicant is seeking area variances for creating a new non-conformity with a larger home, the 40-foot minimum between homes and does not comply with Section 185-23-B-12 to replace a 24' x 54' home with a 27' x 56' home.

Chairperson Cardone: Our first applicant this evening John Warner, Candlestick Park, LLC. 165 Lattintown Road. We'll move onto our second applicant.

(Time Noted – 7:10 PM)

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

(Time Noted – 7:16 PM)

Chairperson Cardone: I see that Mr. Warner came in. We'll next hear the application John Warner, Candlestick Park.

Mr. Warner: I apologize for being late. 

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on April 15th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on April 16th. The applicant sent out twenty-one registered letters, fifteen were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order. 

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Please for the record, identify yourself and you may begin. 

Mr. Warner: John Warner, 48 Susan Drive, Newburgh. I just realized, found out this afternoon that I'd made a serious error in my application for the variance. I'm off by two feet on an important measurement and I have modified, drawn a revised map and if you'll allow me to give you copies of this.

Chairperson Cardone: Please.

(Mr. Warner approached)

Mr. Warner: There's two dimensions in question from the Building Department. One was the setback in the lower left of the site #71, that we're asking for a 3 feet of room there for the replacement home of 3 feet at that point. Giving us the 3 we still have 26 ½ feet left to the road so considering all three sides that face the road is front yards, the 25 yard (feet) front yard setback we're O.K. on that so that's not an issue. The issue is on the north end of the home, the original or the prior home was 20.5 feet and in order to put in a 2 foot longer home we would like to put the additional 2 feet in that direction. The alternative of putting it to the south would be less desirable because there's a steep hillside going towards 75 and it would require a small retaining wall to be built and it would also create a drainage issue that we would have to deal with. But that is an acceptable alternative. So that's all I have to say.

Chairperson Cardone: Questions from the Board.

Ms. Drake: When was the previous home removed from the site?

Mr. Warner: January.

Ms. Drake: Of '08?

Mr. Warner: '08, no '07…it was 2007.

Ms. Drake: Oh, O.K.

Mr. Manley: Mr. Warner about maybe a year ago, I think, you came before the Board in order to obtain a blanket variance…

Mr. Warner: Yes.

Mr. Manley: …for all of the homes in the park for replacement purposes. This was not one of the ones that was requested?

Mr. Warner: That was a mistake on my part. The size of the previous home had 54 feet. It's not a size I had ever heard of and when I looked at the map it looked to me like it was the same as the 56 footers that were put in generally and I didn't consider that to be part of the request.

Mr. Manley: O.K. Do you have any others in the park that eventually will not meet the requirements as outlined in your original variance request?

Mr. Warner: I can't give you a comprehensive answer on that. I certainly hope not. You know it's possible to put a smaller doublewide on this site but this 56-foot length is the shortest doublewide that will allow a three-bedroom home and we feel that a three bedroom is what we should be offering people and if we wanted to go to a two bedroom doublewide we could go with a shorter home and that's…

Mr. Manley: Just the last question that I have is the home as it's set up here, is it going to be owned by you and rented out or do you actually just rent the lot out and they put the home in? 

Mr. Warner: It'll be owner occupied, so, yes.

Mr. Manley: O.K. so you…

Mr. Warner: They buy the home and they will pay us rent for the property.

Mr. Manley: So you're actually getting the variance for them so they…

Mr. Warner: Yes, but we don't have a buyer yet it's for the prospective new arrival of that.

Mr. Manley: O.K. got you. Thank you.

Ms. Drake: Is there existing water and sewer there?

Mr. Warner: Yes.

Ms. Drake: But its not Town water and sewer?

Mr. Warner: That's correct.

Ms. Drake: O.K. So therefore increasing the sides of the bedroom won't impact the treatment…the sewage treatment?

Mr. Warner: No.

Ms. Drake: O.K. 

Mr. Manley: Is there a way that you can maybe move the house a little closer to the road to maybe get it away from #75? I know that you're going to…

Mr. Warner: Well that's the crunch point right now. That's where we need the two feet and the alternative is to allow a 56 ft would be to go the other way to get it closer. 

Mr. Manley: What I'm saying is can't you get instead of maybe 18 ½ feet couldn't you go maybe 15 feet, pull the house another 3 ½ feet farther from #75 to give it more of a…?

Mr. Warner: Yes, yes.

Mr. Manley: Have you considered that as an alternative?

Mr. Warner: No, no because we're encroaching on the 25 ft setback requirement as it being considered a front yard.

Mr. Manley: Yes, but then you're getting closer to the roadway which gives you more of a separation between the two, I'm thinking for fire purposes it would give you a farther setback from #75.

Mr. Warner: I'd be happy to move it further but it never occurred to me to request that because I would be asking for a greater variance.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Manley: Right. Greater variance but you're also increasing the distance between…so you're lowering; you're actually increasing the setback of the other one.

Mr. Warner: But the separation between 75 and 71 is the same as it's been for thirty years, you understand. 

Mr. Manley: Right.

Chairperson Cardone: It's 34 feet.

Mr. McKelvey: Is there other units in there that close?

Mr. Warner: Pardon?

Mr. McKelvey: Is there other units in the park that close?

Mr. Warner: Oh, that 34.5 is quite generous I'd say the average. The home was laid out on basically 30 feet and…

Mr. McKelvey: It looks like that when you go through them.

Mr. Warner: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Now in the original variance request and if you'll remember I argued against giving such a blanket at the time because of details like this when it gets down to the fine tuning stuff. And now you're asking for the convenience of having another bedroom when there's parking problems…what are you going to do with an extra car with another bedroom?

Mr. Warner: Well this particular is quite…already has a very generous parking area. Where the word replacement home is the previous owners of the prior home had room there for about 4 cars. It's a paved parking area for about 4 cars.

Mr. Hughes: Just what we don't want. Why would you want to pack that many people in…trailer parks traditionally are crowded to begin with and now you're looking for another bedroom and 4 cars?

Mr. Warner: No, the home that was taken out was 3 bedrooms also.

Mr. Hughes: It was?

Mr. Warner: Yes, but the bedrooms are tiny.

Mr. Hughes: I guess.

Mr. Warner: You know, 6 ft x 8 ft.

Mr. Hughes: The other thing I have, you're saying that the only problem is that if you move it the other way you got to do more work. Is there a foundation under this thing, or…?

Mr. Warner: No, we have to put one in. We have to pour a concrete slab, yes.

Mr. Hughes: So this is entirely for your convenience?

Mr. Warner: Well, the Town has identified us as an example of affordable housing in the Town of Newburgh and the public is looking for the best deal for their money and a 3-bedroom home is what 90% of the customers are looking for, so we're trying to serve the market. We don't have…very few people…

Mr. Hughes: And now to answer my question.

Mr. Warner: I'm sorry?

Mr. Hughes: And now to answer my question.

Mr. Warner: Please repeat the question. I thought I did.

Mr. Hughes: Yes, well if you did I didn't get it.

Mr. Warner: Yes, sir.

Mr. Hughes: This is entirely for your convenience?

Mr. Warner: No.

Mr. Hughes: Yes or No.

Mr. Warner: No, no, our convenience? No. We want to sell a home to somebody that wants a home.

Mr. Hughes: No I mean the variance. I understand what your money gain is. I want to know why you think we should give you a further of non-conformity here because you goofed? When I said in the very beginning I said this stuff was going to happen and I wanted to avoid it. I think it's too bad for you. I think that you ought to do a little more digging and spend some money in concrete and an excavator because you goofed. You shouldn't have been back here to begin with.

Mr. Warner: Oh well I'm not sure if I understand you, you're suggesting to move it, to put the home...to go with the smaller home or to put closer to #71?

Mr. Hughes: Either one you want to try.

Mr. Warner: All right, I'd be certainly willing to go closer to 75 if that was the pleasure of the Board.

Mr. Hughes: To me, you've got 10 pounds of dung in a 5 pound bag to begin with, why should I let you put it in a 2 pounder?

Mr. Manley: The original variance didn't include this particular property, I don't know if you're aware of that.

Mr. Hughes: Well no but the whole thing was…you know what's up there.

Mr. Manley: But in fairness to Mr. Warner I think that this particular manufactured home that's there…if he had at the time felt that this one was going to be replaced he probably would have included that.

Mr. Warner: Yes.

Mr. Manley: He wouldn't need to be back if this house was included in that blanket one and I think it's an honest mistake. It's an honest mistake.

Mr. Hughes: Well no, I'm not chastising him for a mistake. Anybody can make a mistake but for 2 feet that you're looking for here, dig it the other way or get a smaller house.

Chairperson Cardone: What Mr. Manley is saying the opposite, he saying it…

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: …it should go back further. 

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: You're saying that it should go closer to the road.

Mr. Manley: Right.

Mr. Hughes: That's why we have an odd number of people up here.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. McKelvey: How old was the old trailer?

Mr. Warner: Thirty-seven years.

Mr. Donovan: If I could ask this question? You presently have a Permit for the park?

Mr. Warner: A Permit for the park? As contrasted for this home?

Mr. Donovan: That's correct. The reason why I ask, the question has been raised since the home itself has been off the parcel for more than a year generally a pre-existing non-conforming status is protected to up to one year and the way I would analyze it if there is a Permit under 185-23 for the mobile home park that that applies to the entire park and not…so it wouldn't be a problem if that specific lot was vacant for more than one year. But I didn't know I need to know…since this…I assume this is going to fall under Article VI of the Town zoning.

Mr. Warner: The original application went in in November of '07.

Mr. Donovan: No I mean for your…how many trailers do you have in the park?

Mr. Warner: We have 96 sites.

Mr. Donovan: And you interface with the Building Department and they do inspections and you have a Permit to operate that park issued by the Town?

Mr. Warner: No.

Mr. Donovan: O.K. So…

Mr. Warner: No, we appeared before the Planning Board in 1998 and in 1999 after satisfying quite a list of their requirements they certified the park as meeting the Town's requirements and that was the only official overall approval we got.

Mr. Donovan: O.K. I don't know what that approval would determine that...?

Mr. Hughes: Don't we have a continuance issue here besides?

Chairperson Cardone: That's what we're talking about.

Mr. Donovan: Well, that's the issue we are trying to resolve because I would offer the opinion that if the entire park is approved…? Right?

Mr. Hughes: But this one wasn't part of that package, this is a totally different thing.

Mr. Donovan: I'm not talking the variance; I'm talking about approval under 185-23 for the entire park. So if approval for the entire park and the fact that one lot may have been vacant for more than one year wouldn't cause that lot lose it's status because the entire park is approved but I don't know the answer to that question now because I'm not sure that I understand the status of the approval of the park, if any.

Mr. Warner: Well…

Mr. Donovan: If you don't know the answer, don't guess at it.

Mr. Warner: I don't know either. All I know is the ZBA has…

Mr. Donovan: Understand that I'm relatively new here and it sounds to me that this has been around the horn before.

Mr. Hughes: Oh yeah.

Mr. McKelvey: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: The safety situations here are the thing that are the most interest from where I sit and because of the nature of the park in itself and because the way it was put together over the years without proper Permit processing and so forth it's evolved into a parking situation where there's more and more people that have more and more cars in the family these days than they did in the '60's or '70's and everybody over 16 has their own car. And they're parked in the street, they're parked in the lots, they're parked in the driveways. Sometimes when you go up there you never know what you are going to find. It's a safety issue nothing else. 

Chairperson Cardone: That seems like that's a Code issue.

Mr. Hughes: It is.

Mr. Manley: But I think we're stuck with proceeding until we know whether or not the park actually has a Permit, right?

Mr. Donovan: Well, I mean, what it's been cited for by the Building Department…they took the night off? 

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Ms. Gennarelli: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: O.K. but the referencing 185-19 creating a new non-conformity, they're also referencing 185-23-B-12 which is the mobile home court provision and I'm looking at Subdivision VI which talks about renewal applications shall be filed with the Building and Code Enforcement Officer before the 1st day of December next preceding expiration of the original permit…does any of this ring a bell to you?

Mr. Warner: Never, never, you know I've owned the park for fifteen years and we've never given…filed a permit. In fact, it was a couple of years after we got the park that we had the first home that the Building Department wanted to become involved in. So I was there at the beginning.

Chairperson Cardone: When was the involvement with the Planning Board exactly?

Mr. Warner: That was in 19…there was a sunset clause in the Town Code that's probably still there that's said there's a community such as ours had until 2001, I believe, to comply with the new Zoning Code which came in after the park was built and that new Code required 40 foot spacing among a whole bunch of other things and that's what we spent two years working with the Planning Board to meet their requirements to get them to certify the park as is and that was done I think it was March of '99.

Mr. Donovan: What I think we should do is this…I don't think we have enough information to make a decision so we're going to need that information whatever transpired in front of the Planning Board, 10 years ago as well as a copy of the whatever variance. I understand that this lot may not have or was not included but I'd like to see a copy of that variance as well just so we can take a look at it before the Board takes any action. 

Ms. Drake: And don't we also need to know if they have the Town Building Department follow up on the Permit that you were referring to earlier? 

Mr. Hughes: Sure.

Mr. Donovan: Yes, I assume that there is a reason for that but I don't know what that reason is. 

Mr. Hughes: I'd like to know that reason. 

Ms. Drake: That would be a third item.

Mr. Hughes: And I'd like to know the alternative mechanism...they may be able to use. 

Mr. Donovan: They maybe employ.

Mr. Hughes: I don't know what's going on. I'm not comfortable with it.

Mr. Warner: We get an annual Permit with the County Health Department that's the only annual.

Mr. Hughes: Is that for your water and sewer? 

Mr. Warner: Yes it is. I don't know if it specifically refers to that. 

Mr. Donovan: It's water.

Mr. Hughes: There are wells over there.

Mr. Donovan: Yes. It's water.

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Warner: Yes. Probably.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion to hold the hearing open until May 22nd.

Mr. Hughes: So moved.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ronald Hughes: Yes



          James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes



      Ruth Eaton: Absent

Michael Maher: Absent

Mr. Warner: It will be on the Agenda next month? Is that it?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes. May 22nd.

(Time Noted – 7:35 PM)

ZBA MEETING – APRIL 24, 2008              (Time Noted –7:10 PM) 


GREG GALATI


629 GRAND AVENUE, NBGH






(43-3-43.2) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance to build an in-ground pool in a front yard.

Chairperson Cardone: We'll move onto our second applicant Greg Galati, 629 Grand Avenue.

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on April 15th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on April 16th. The applicant sent out seventeen registered letters, eleven were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order. 

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

Mr. Manley: Madam Chair before we start may I direct a question to Counsel?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, you may. 

Mr. Manley: Thank you. I have a business relationship with the applicant. The applicant retains a pool store in the Town of Newburgh in which I purchase and utilize their pool chemicals as well as service to my pool. Do you feel that that in itself may potentially present itself to be a conflict of interest?

Mr. Donovan: In and of itself that does not constitute a conflict of interest. You have no financial interest in his store, I assume, nor do you have any financial interest direct or indirect and you're not going to build the pool that he is building at his property?

Mr. Manley: Correct.

Mr. Donovan: O.K. If you however feel that you cannot be impartial or objective relative to the application then you should recuse yourself otherwise there is no legal requirement just because the family sells pools in the area there is no legal requirement that you step aside.

Mr. Manley: I would then leave that up to the applicant if they feel comfortable with me sitting on the Board I have no problem.

Mr. Galati: I do.

Chairperson Cardone: If you would identify yourself and then proceed. Just make sure that microphone is turned on.

Mr. Galati: Is it on?

Ms. Gennarelli: Yes. 

Mr. Galati: My name is Greg Galati. My wife and I live at 629 Grand Avenue. I'm here tonight to request an area variance to build an in-ground pool in what is by definition our front yard. Unlike typical front yards, our front yard does not abut the road. You can see from that. The yard proposed for the pools location is separated from Grand Avenue by Tax Parcel 53, which includes our neighbor's front yard, their house at 627 Grand Avenue and their backyard. In fact if a pool were to be proposed and located 250 feet east actually closer to the road it would be in their backyard of Parcel 53 and of course, thereby allowed by zoning. Additionally, before the lot line between our parcel and our neighbor's parcel was moved eastward by 170 feet in March of 2005 the proposed pool location would have actually been primarily in their backyard. So where the pool is going really was once a backyard and we're not on the road, the front yard is not abutting the road. So technically we have no road frontage. Our lot is similar to a flag lot set back approximately 500 feet from the road and it is extremely secluded, surrounded mainly by woods and fields resulting in our front yard being unseen from the road or any of the surrounding residences. Consequently the swimming pool in its proposed location will not have any negative impacts on the neighborhood or on nearby property values. In addition, it's hard to tell from the map but if you saw the site, I have some pictures, the property is topographically very challenging in many ways. It also was laid out very irregularly. These factors make it impossible to locate the pool in either side yard or the backyard leaving the designated front yard ad the only feasible location for the pool on the property. Mainly the reason for this is the area directly outside the front door of the house to the south, which is a side yard, consists of a very narrow plateau followed by a steep elevation drop of over 8 feet. At the base of that hill or elevation drop is the driveway, which is located along the properties legally, designated right of way. The septic system is located on the other side of driveway in the field that's over there. The other side yard to the north of the property is very narrow and it's characterized by an uphill slope in excess of 14 feet. This area is also encumbered by the domestic water…the well is out there and there is actually some drainage pipes emanating from the well and different things from years ago apparently. The rear yard has a continuation of the driveway going around the house leading into the garages and past the driveway area is a small grass area, this also has a steep downhill slope. And, also the overhead utility lines carrying service to the house also encumber this area. Although the proposed location of the pool is by definition the front yard it is architecturally the side yard since the house was originally built to face the driveway right of way therefore we believe if done as proposed the project will aesthetically improve the property by in effect creating it's own water view and thereby increasing in value. This will help it to stay inline with the other properties in the neighborhood many of which already have in ground pools or they enjoy stunning Hudson River views. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have questions from the Board?

Mr. McKelvey: You are not going to see this pool from the road?

Chairperson Cardone: No. 

Mr. Galati: No.

Ms. Drake: No one is going to see it.

Mr. McKelvey: Nobody is going to see it.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Galati: It is very well hidden.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions or comments from the public?  Do we have a motion to close the Public Hearing? 

Mr. McKelvey: So moved.

Ms. Drake: Second.    

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ronald Hughes: Yes



          James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes



      Ruth Eaton: Absent

Michael Maher: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Galati: Thank you.

(Time Noted – 7:16 PM)

ZBA MEETING – APRIL 24, 2008       (Resumption for decision: 9:37 PM)

GREG GALATI


629 GRAND AVENUE, NBGH






(43-3-43.2) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance to build an in-ground pool in a front yard.

Chairperson Cardone: The Board is resuming its regular meeting. On the first application of Greg Galati, 629 Grand Avenue, seeking an area variance to build an in-ground pool in a front yard. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. McKelvey: I think with the location of it and nobody is really going to see it, I don't really see any problem. 

Ms. Drake: I don't either.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion to approve this application? 

Mr. Hughes: I'll make a motion.

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ronald Hughes: Yes



          James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes



      Ruth Eaton: Absent

Michael Maher: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RONALD HUGHES

JAMES MANLEY



DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

RUTH EATON - ABSENT

MICHAEL MAHER -ABSENT


 (Time Noted – 9:38 PM)

ZBA MEETING – APRIL 24, 2008              (Time Noted – 7:35 PM) 


DANIEL WOERDEMAN

25 WESTWOOD DRIVE, NBGH






(90-3-19) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the left side yard to build a rear addition (dining room) on the residence.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Daniel Woerdeman, 25 Westwood Drive.

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on April 15th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on April 16th. The applicant sent out thirty-four registered letters, thirty-four were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order. 

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Woerdeman: Hello, my name is Daniel Woerdeman, I live at 25 Westwood Drive, we'd like to get a variance on side setback for an addition. Also to, one of the things that when I actually bought the piece of property my surveyor informed me that there was actually 7.2 feet between my property line and my neighbor's property line. I went to Goshen they couldn't give me an answer. Nobody could give me an answer why there was such a discrepancy if there is a 7 feet difference from my piece of property to my neighbor's piece of property.

Mr. Hughes: Did they ever tell you what the other end of the pie was…the measurement there?

Mr. Woerdeman: Yes, I have everything right here.

Mr. Hughes: You just might have an overlay.

Mr. Woerdeman: No they said there was an actual because it's deeded and there is a field showing 97 feet difference between their deed is 90 feet and there's another 7.2 feet to my property. There is a gap that runs the whole property line between hers and mine that was never recorded. Because apparently when they actually did the part there was never a proper survey or updated survey. It was actually like a drawing of it, just a rough measurement of it. One of the actual, my surveyor said maybe because it has a slight bend in the road and the way they actually did their points may have thrown everything off because everyone on the lot had 90 feet. Every house has 90-foot frontage except for mine it has a 92 but that 7.2 feet makes it an equal 90. That in itself by…and they also told me to get a quick claims deed put on it which I did…had it time stamped and with that extra 7.2 feet gives me the…actually because I need 15 feet side plan…it actually gives me 18 feet side plan and it doesn't impact me or my neighbor. My neighbor didn't have any want or to do with it that's why she signed off on it. I didn't know that I would have had this done that's why I asked to be in front of the ZBA just in case. Even my lawyer said that it may have took anywhere from three to six months to get the issue resolved. But to the process of going title insurance companies and everybody else it got dunked and floored at the meeting because I actually had gone down to the Building Department and mentioned that Monday, so.

Mr. Hughes: Just a stab at it and so maybe the Board and the public can understand what happens a lot of the times is they'll take those 90 foot or 100 foot sub-divisions and mark them out on a road frontage and then where they can draw as many straight lines as they can…guess where your lot was?   

Mr. Woerdeman: Yes, exactly. 

Mr. Hughes: So they've got the straight line here all 90's, the straight line here all 90's and then you've got 6.2 and 15 out here…there is the keystone. It's smart that you did what you did because it may never be resolved. 

Mr. Woerdeman: Yes, that's what even the County was for the taxes it was because of that.


Mr. Hughes: Just for the public information on how those things usually happen.

Mr. McKelvey: This addition you are putting on is on the driveway side of your neighbor?

Mr. Woerdeman: Yes, yes.

Mr. Hughes: And your neighbor has no complaints, right?

Mr. Woerdeman: No, like I said, they even signed the…

Mr. Hughes: Yes, we read that. Nobody else has a contest about that?

Mr. Woerdeman: No. Not even my neighbor on the other side. He is loving what I'm doing with the house.

Mr. McKelvey: If you notice in your picture there are additions on the houses next door to you too.

Mr. Woerdeman: I'm the only one that pretty much doesn't.

Mr. McKelvey: That's both sides it looks like. 

Mr. Donovan: Now is it your position before the Board you no longer need the variance?

Mr. Woerdeman: Well I don't think I do because I have it now so I meet the requirement of side yard.

Mr. Donovan: I don't want to spend more of your money, although Frank is a pretty good surveyor, but what you'll need to do is actually have him do is a new survey to show that that shown what the 'x' line…I don't know if that's a wire fence or what that is there. But that's going need to be shown as your boundary line. 

Mr. Woerdeman: I actually do have another updated one with the actual 7.2.

Mr. Donovan: So you spent the money already?

Mr. Woerdeman: Yes, I did sir.

Mr. Donovan: O.K. wise man.

Mr. Woerdeman: It's done. I'm trying to get it back.

Mr. Donovan: O.K. Tell him he needs a shot in the arm, so.

Mr. Woerdeman: I'm doing my best.

Mr. Hughes: Counsel, should we recommend that he go through with it as long as he spent the money already and give it to him that way so that if it does come up he doesn't have to end up back here? 

Mr. Donovan: Yes, I mean my only hesitancy is that if you can avoid having a lot with a variance on it you are better off doing that. Now what may make some sense if the Board is so inclined you could grant the variance unless and until he has demonstrated to the Building Department that you have more than 15 feet. So it's covered from both sides.

Mr. Hughes: So an approval with that condition would cover it all around?

Mr. Donovan: Yes. 

Mr. Woerdeman: So I submit this map, I would like to do that.

Mr. Donovan: Well you could submit it to the clerk and then you are going to need, I don't have any copies here, you are going to need it to the Building Department as well.

Mr. Woerdeman: O.K.

Mr. Manley: Could we also so as not to do that and cause additional paperwork just hold it open and have him report back to us as to whether or not? And then we could just then take no action.

Mr. Donovan: That's up to the Board but if you act tonight it's not on your agenda next month. 

Mr. Hughes: But doesn't that become a civil matter and it's really not what we're supposed to be doing?

Mr. Donovan: Right.

Mr. Hughes: I think with the condition we'll be safe for everybody with the applicant.

Mr. Donovan: And he won't have to come back next month and you won't have to do anything.

Mr. Manley: O.K.


Mr. Woerdeman: I have more if you want them now or no?

Mr. Donovan: How many more do you have?

Mr. Woerdeman: I have three more.

Mr. Donovan: Does everybody on the Board want one or no?

Chairperson Cardone: No. Is there one we could just pass around?

Mr. Donovan: If you could give one to me that would be great.

Mr. Woerdeman: O.K.

Mr. Donovan: Thank you.

Mr. McKelvey: You have to give one to the Town to right?

Mr. Woerdeman: Yes. 

Chairperson Cardone: If you would give Betty one more, then she could give it to the Building Department.

Ms. Gennarelli: Yes, O.K.

Mr. Donovan: Yes. I think, after looking at the new survey, dated September…where is the revision date on it? It's dated September 17, 2007, I don't see a revision date but it also doesn't show the dimension over the new piece of property so I think that even…well it shows at the bottom 7.2 but I don't know that it's a straight shot necessarily. I think it's a better reason that we should act the way we discussed before.

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Woerdeman: Well do I have to come back again, or…?

Mr. Donovan: Well we have to wait. We can't anticipate a vote. If they want to vote later tonight they will do that.

Mr. Woerdeman: O.K. great.

Chairperson Cardone: Are there any other questions from the Board or any questions or comments from the public?  Do we have a motion to close the Public Hearing? 

Mr. Hughes: So moved.

Ms. Drake: Second.    

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ronald Hughes: Yes



          James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes



      Ruth Eaton: Absent

Michael Maher: Absent

(Time Noted – 7:44 PM)

ZBA MEETING – APRIL 24, 2008       (Resumption for decision: 9:39 PM)

DANIEL WOERDEMAN

25 WESTWOOD DRIVE, NBGH






(90-3-19) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the left side yard to build a rear addition (dining room) on the residence.

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Daniel Woerdeman, 25 Westwood Drive, seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the left side yard to build a rear addition (dining room) on the residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. Manley: I believe we were going to issue a conditional variance if the applicant should need it based on his survey. Correct?

Mr. Donovan: Correct.

Mr. Manley: I don't see any problem with the size of the structure. It appears to blend in with the neighborhood, there's other similar neighbors that have that similar size structure addition in the back so I would be fine with making a motion, a conditional variance if the applicant should need it for the required setback.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ronald Hughes: Yes



          James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes



      Ruth Eaton: Absent

Michael Maher: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RONALD HUGHES

JAMES MANLEY



DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

RUTH EATON - ABSENT

MICHAEL MAHER -ABSENT


 (Time Noted – 9:40 PM)

ZBA MEETING – APRIL 24, 2008              (Time Noted – 7:44 PM) 


FRANK & CYNTHIA FENNELL

39 SOUTH DIX AVENUE, NBGH







(72-9-4.1) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the front yard setback to build a sunroom on residence. (Two front yards Taft & So Dix)

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Frank and Cynthia Fennell, 39 South Dix Avenue. 

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on April 15th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on April 16th. The applicant sent out twenty-three registered letters, twenty-three were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order. 

Ms. Fennell: Hello, my name is Cynthia Fennell, I'm here asking for a variance to put on a sunroom.

Chairperson Cardone: And you have two front yards?

Ms. Fennell: And I have two front yards and a small house with a 4.1 lot.

Chairperson Cardone: I’d have the report from the Orange County Department of Planning:

We do not have any significant intercommunity or countywide considerations to bring to your attention and they're recommending - Local Determination.

Do we have any questions from the Board? We've all been to the property and we've seen this.

Ms. Fennell: O.K. thanks. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions or comments from the public?  Do we have a motion to close the Public Hearing? 

Mr. McKelvey: I make a motion we close the Public Hearing.

Ms. Drake: Second.    

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ronald Hughes: Yes



          James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes



      Ruth Eaton: Absent

Michael Maher: Absent

(Time Noted – 7:45 PM)

ZBA MEETING – APRIL 24, 2008       (Resumption for decision: 9:40 PM)

FRANK & CYNTHIA FENNELL

39 SOUTH DIX AVENUE, NBGH







(72-9-4.1) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the front yard setback to build a sunroom on residence. (Two front yards Taft & So Dix)

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Frank and Cynthia Fennell, 39 South Dix Avenue seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the front yard setback to build a sunroom on residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. McKelvey: Two front yards. I'll make a motion we approve.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ronald Hughes: Yes



          James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes



      Ruth Eaton: Absent

Michael Maher: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RONALD HUGHES

JAMES MANLEY



DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

RUTH EATON - ABSENT

MICHAEL MAHER -ABSENT


 (Time Noted – 9:41 PM)

ZBA MEETING – APRIL 24, 2008              (Time Noted – 7:45 PM) 


ALFRED & SUSAN YERGER

1312 UNION AVENUE, NBGH







(15-5-4) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the front yard setback to build a covered front porch (6' x 8') on residence.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Alfred and Susan Yerger.

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on April 15th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on April 16th. The applicant sent out thirteen registered letters, ten were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order. 

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. For the record please identify yourself.

Mr. Coppola: Yes, my name is AJ Coppola I am the architect who is representing the owner. Real quickly what we're proposing at 1312 Union Avenue is basically a front porch 8 feet wide by 6 feet deep for Mr. and Mrs. Yerger. That is the only change to the footprint of the existing house. The house is set approximately 40 feet from the road. The new front yard addition or front yard setback would be 36 foot 4. The required setback is 50 it's basically only, this addition is only going to be used to enhance the existing façade with two columns, a reverse gable, we're also changing the two existing dormers so that the roofs match that reverse. It's very simple front yard setback to build this 6 foot deep porch on the existing house.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. When was this house built?

Mr. Coppola: That I don't know.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Mr. Coppola: I don't know. I don't want to guess. It's a small cape. You have the photo.

Chairperson Cardone: I've seen it, yes, been there.

Mr. Hughes: Isn't the setback along 300 further back than that in that zone?


Mr. Coppola: 50 feet.

Mr. Donovan: Code Compliance is telling us 50 feet.

Mr. Hughes: Really?

Mr. Donovan: Yes, but let's take a look.

Mr. Hughes: I've read something recently that it was further back than that along several roads and it listed 300 as one of them.

Mr. Manley: Yes, 300 but this isn't 300, this is Union Avenue.

Mr. McKelvey: Union Avenue.

Chairperson Cardone: This is Union Avenue.

Mr. Manley: Town Road, Union Avenue not State Route 300.

Mr. Hughes: Oh, O.K. you said the number and Union Avenue I thought you were talking about up here. O.K. I know where you mean now.

Mr. Manley: Right over, right Chapel Road.

Mr. Hughes: That's that little tiny one, oh, O.K. 

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Hughes: Chapel Road going towards Mary Phyllis Lane.

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Manley: Rock Cut and Forest are 80 feet Town Code; I think that's what you were thinking of.

Mr. Hughes: Yes, and this one out here too.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board? Any questions or comments from the public? Do we have a motion to close the Public Hearing? 

Ms. Drake: I make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. Manley: Second.    

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ronald Hughes: Yes



          James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes



      Ruth Eaton: Absent

Michael Maher: Absent

Mr. Coppola: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

(Time Noted – 7:49 PM)

ZBA MEETING – APRIL 24, 2008       (Resumption for decision: 9:41 PM)

ALFRED & SUSAN YERGER

1312 UNION AVENUE, NBGH







(15-5-4) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the front yard setback to build a covered front porch (6' x 8') on residence.

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Alfred and Susan Yerger, 1312 Union Avenue seeking an area variance for the front yard setback to build a covered front porch (6' x 8') on residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Ms. Drake: I don't see that it's going to be a big impact to the property. 

Mr. McKelvey: No it's not that big.  

Mr. Manley: It actually improves the look of the front of the building, it doesn't look so blank in the front, it kind of makes it stand out more.

Ms. Drake: I make a motion to approve.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ronald Hughes: Yes



          James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes



      Ruth Eaton: Absent

Michael Maher: Absent

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RONALD HUGHES

JAMES MANLEY



DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

RUTH EATON - ABSENT

MICHAEL MAHER -ABSENT


 (Time Noted – 9:42 PM)

ZBA MEETING – APRIL 24, 2008              (Time Noted – 7:49 PM) 


WB INTERCHANGE ASSOCIATES, LLC
ROUTE 300/I-84 (Rte 300/Union 

(THE MARKETPLACE AT NEWBURGH)

Ave/I-84/Brookside Ave/Meadow








Ave/Rte 52/So. Plank Rd/Fifth Ave)








 (60-3-41.3, 41.4, 48, 49.1, 49.22,








97-1-13.3, 20.3 IB ZONE 








71-4-8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 71-5-9,








15, 16)
 R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the amount of total square footage allowed for signage and the limitation of the number of pylon and freestanding signs. 

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant WB Interchange Associates.

Mr. Bainlardi: Good evening, John Bainlardi for WB Interchange Associates. I have a handout for you of some signs that were put together.

(Mr. Bainlardi approached with the paperwork)

Mr. Bainlardi: At the last meeting, we had agreed to consult with the signage consultant which was hired for this project and to make some changes to the proposal in accordance with the signage consultant's recommendations. And, I'd like to, I guess, go through the package if that's acceptable?

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. As you do so would you point out the changes?

Mr. Bainlardi: Yes, the first page is the signage schedule and here we broke down Item A into two parts as directed by the signage consultant. The first part is specific to monument signage it breaks out the four requested monument signs, three shopping center I.D. monuments at each of the three access points. The largest of the three being the main shopping center identification monument at Route 300 and then a two sided pylon sign at Route 300 which contains both a shopping center identification at the top of the sign as well as some tenant messages. The total requested monument signage is now identified as 716 sq. ft. Additionally; we broke out the way finding signage, which comprised the internal directional signs. There are fifteen of those, I'm sorry, twelve of those each fifteen square feet and then there are four four-sided pedestrian directories, which are located within the Village Center component of the project. The total requested way-finding signage is 420 sq.ft. That's a reduction of just under 2000 sq. ft., which was originally requested but had been unallocated so that the unallocated portion has been eliminated from the variance request. The Village Center components remains unchanged at a total of 5222 total sq. ft. There are as indicated here on the signage schedule here that is subject to the limitations set forth in the drawing SW-1 presented with the original application and that each store in the Village Center is specifically allocated one square foot of signage per linear foot of store façades one. There are additional conditions on the second page of this package, which I'll go through in detail. And then last was the major retailers which is broken down by individual big box store again is one square foot of signage per linear foot of store façades but in the larger boxes the rear façades of the buildings are not included for signage calculations. And the total requested big box signage is 4348 sq. ft. allocated amongst the six boxes as presently presented on the plan. So, in sum you've got the total requested signage of 10,706 sq. ft. The total signage permitted by Code is the 3, 304 sq. ft. so it leaves a total variance requested of 7,402 sq. ft. Again that's roughly about 2000 sq. ft. less than what we had originally requested. Additionally, we have a total of twenty requested freestanding signs. Interpretation of the Code is that one freestanding sign is permitted under the zoning so there is a request for a variance there of nineteen freestanding signs. On the second page…

Mr. Manley: Could you just back up a minute? You said, nineteen freestanding signs?

Mr. Bainlardi: Yes.

Mr. Manley: Where?

Mr. Bainlardi: Twelve of which are the directional way finding signs.

Mr. Manley: And four?

Mr. Bainlardi: Four are the…

Mr. Manley: The directories.

Mr. Bainlardi: …for the pedestrian directories.

Mr. Manley: So now that's sixteen.

Mr. Bainlardi: And then you have four monuments. Or its actually three monuments and one pylon.

Mr. Manley: O.K. so that then is a total of twenty.

Mr. Bainlardi: Twenty.

Mr. Manley: And you're saying that you get to take one out.

Mr. Bainlardi: One is permitted under the Code so it would be a total variance of nineteen.

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Mr. Bainlardi: Any other questions on the addition?

Mr. McKelvey: You no longer have that reserve you had before?

Mr. Bainlardi: That's correct. 

Mr. Manley: One other thing, could you please go through Building A, B, C, D and E just because I don't have the large map with me tonight? And could you just tell me which stores are in each building? Just so I can match it up later on. 

Mr. Bainlardi: Sure.

Mr. Manley: Building A would be…?

Mr. Bainlardi: Building A is JC Penney.

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Mr. Bainlardi: There is no tenant that we can name at this point for Building B. Building 2 which is the…

Mr. Hughes: Are you not allowed to name them or you don't have one?

Mr. Bainlardi: We're pretty…we're reasonably far along in some negotiations but I'm not at the point yet where I can identify them. In Building B, which is approximately 90,000 sq. ft., we have two tenants who will roughly take just about the entire square footage for that building.

Mr. Manley: And Building A is how many square feet?

Mr. Bainlardi: Building A is about 104,000 sq. ft. Building 2 is Best Buy. That's about 30,000 sq. ft.

Mr. Manley: Just out of curiosity, why did that become Building 2 and not Building F?

Mr. Bainlardi: At one point we had a couple of free standings who were identified as Building 1 and 2 and it just continued that way for continuity purposes. 

Mr. McKelvey: What was the square footage of Best Buy? 

Mr. Bainlardi: Approximately 30,000 sq. ft. Buildings C and D there are no tenants at this point in time that I can disclose?

Mr. Manley: Could you share…

Mr. Hughes: Same question 

Mr. Manley: …the square footage?

Mr. Bainlardi: We're not as far along in that process with those particular buildings as we are with the other.

Mr. Hughes: There are prospects.

Mr. Bainlardi: Yes.  

Mr. Hughes: But you're not that far along in negotiations?

Mr. Bainlardi: Yes. The total square footage for Buildings C and D combined is about 235,000 sq ft.

Mr. Manley: Could you just for the purposes of my exercise just tell me how much C is and how many D is just so that I can…?

Mr. Bainlardi: Building C is approximately 135,000 sq. ft. and Building D is approximately 100,000 sq. ft.

Mr. Manley: 100,000?

Mr. Bainlardi: Yes. 

Mr. Manley: Now if you could maybe just share with me…Building D is 100,000 sq. ft. and it gets 598 linear feet of signage or well no…that would be the equivalent of 598 sq. ft. of sign?

Mr. Bainlardi: 598 total square feet, yes.

Mr. Manley: Of signage?

Mr. Bainlardi: Yes.

Mr. Manley: Based on one foot per linear square foot.

Mr. Bainlardi: Based upon one foot of linear foot.

Mr. Manley: Correct.

Mr. Bainlardi: So it's the length of the façade.

Mr. Manley: And sides of the façade or just the front? 

Mr. Bainlardi: It's any…it's the…for Building D it's two façades. The southern façade and the eastern façade, there is no western facade because it has a party wall with the building that adjoins it and we're not counting the rear façade for purposes of allotment of square footage.

Mr. Manley: I guess where my…like for example Building D is 100,000 square feet? Yes or there abouts?

Mr. Bainlardi: Yes.

Mr. Manley: Building #2 is only about 30,000 sq. ft. so it's about a third the size?

Mr. Bainlardi: Yes.

Mr. Manley: Roughly. But yet it almost gets as many square feet as Building D and I look at that as being a very…if you look at fairness and providing somebody with the amount of square footage they need the very least that we need to provide it seems like there is an inadequacy there. You're talking seventy square feet between the two so I just…an explanation for that or perhaps or if you could share with me…

Mr. Bainlardi: I think one explanation is that you're dealing with a two-sided building as opposed to a three-sided building for purposes of exposure to either a parking lot or a drive isle. Also a…

Mr. Manley: But also if you consider the fairness to…in the way that you've set up your formula actually because Building D has a common wall it actually is penalized in your formula versus Building 2 which is not.

Mr. Bainlardi: Correct. And we're basically willing to live with that and oppose that penalty if you want to call it on the larger of the boxes because we felt that we were granted if this were to be approved, we would be allocating adequate signage for those particular boxes a sign that is proportionate to the building and legible. At some point in time you get, you know you get to a point it's almost a law of diminishing returns, the larger the building, the more signage but it's like we felt that the signage that was allocated for these larger boxes was adequate and we didn't ask for additional signage.

Mr. Manley: O.K. Now just so you know where my thought process is going, I'll be more than happy to share that with you now so kind of know where I'm going. I don't know what the other Board Members are thinking but I'm considering in generating some sort of approval that the approval be conditioned on the fact that each of the buildings that we approve, Building A will be approved for the number of square feet, Building B will be…it won't be approved as a joint 4300 sq. ft. and that it will be limited that in the event for example you say you may split Building B into two. Well if that happens then the square feet will be split into two for the tenants.

Mr. Bainlardi: Correct.

Mr. Manley: Or if it's split in three or four or ten that that will have to be equally divi'ed up…that's what I'm thinking for fairness.

Mr. Bainlardi: That's what we were thinking as well.

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Mr. Bainlardi: So in other words what's allocated to each building cannot if it's unused it cannot be used to add square footage of signage to another building.

Mr. Manley: Great. Now you kind of understand the importance of why I asked early on for this type of breakdown because when you come in with a number of 12,000 sq. ft. that you are requesting I have no idea of what you're looking at putting what where and why and understanding. I'm starting to get a feel for exactly where this is going. I think I have a better handle on it and also Mr. Berger who came in also came up, when I reviewed his report, with a lot of good suggestions on conditions that I didn't think of. So I think it was a very, very useful exercise at least on my part. So, that's all I have right now. Oh, the only other thing is Building E, which is Costco.

Mr. Bainlardi: 150,000 sq. ft.  

Mr. McKelvey: Does that include the gas station? The square footage.

Mr. Bainlardi: Yes.

Mr. McKelvey: O.K.

Mr. Manley: So if it includes the canopy signage shouldn't that be listed as a fourth? You've got west, east, south, shouldn't there be canopy and how much is allotted for that?

Mr. Bainlardi: What we did here was, I put an asterisk (*) next to that to indicate that the proposed signage for the fueling facility canopy is included in that 1198 so it's not in addition to the 1198 it's inclusive so we would have to take that…it's approximately about 86 total square feet for the canopy signage and that…so that will come out of one or multiple façades to reduce the amount that would go on the main building. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have other questions? 

Mr. Hughes: It's a lot to absorb in a few minutes here at a meeting and I didn't receive this package until this evening and this other stuff that came in this afternoon, so…I'd like to have a little bit more time to read it and consume it.

Mr. Bainlardi: Should I continue (inaudible)?

Mr. Hughes: As long as the purpose of your narrative now is to brief us in that I think you're wasting a lot of time where we can read this on our own and speed this forward and rather than burn up the time for the public.

Mr. Manley: I think that it's kind of important to go through it so that if we have questions we can ask the questions so that when we end the meeting tonight and we all go home and start to decide how we're going to put this all together in one big…obviously when we come up with the conditions and the…and when we come up with the language for…if the Board presents a variance we need to have it all spelled out exactly and I think by them providing us with the feedback we can start to put something together. I don't what else…

Chairperson Cardone: And I agree with you Jim.

Mr. Hughes: Well, I have this question then, besides this package which specifies right now and in a hard text what they have for signage did we receive all the other information that we asked them to give to us? Let's start there and then we can go back to this. Did we receive from them all the other stuff that they told us they were going to give us, besides the sign package? 

Chairperson Cardone: Well I think that I would have to ask Brenda if she is satisfied because she had the question initially and I think it's well laid out here that we can see exactly.

Ms. Drake: I'm satisfied.

Mr. Hughes: I'm talking about aside from the sign package.

Mr. Donovan: My memory is that certain things that were asked for the first time that weren't here the second time but however they were either delivered or e-mailed within a few days after the second public hearing.

Mr. Hughes: O.K., so then my question is… 

Mr. Manley: I got everything I needed. 

Mr. Hughes: …we asked for.

Chairperson Cardone: I did too.

Ms. Drake: I believe so.

Mr. Manley: I got everything I needed.

Mr. Donovan: I'll give you an answer to the best of knowledge and recollection everything that was asked for was delivered and received. It wasn't at the meeting you wanted it at but it was shortly thereafter.

Mr. Hughes: All right. As long as you're satisfied, I don't know for sure that's why I asked. That's lawyerese for I don't know.

Mr. Bainlardi: Shall I continue?

Chairperson Cardone: Please continue.

Mr. McKelvey: I think we're a little bit more satisfied that you took away 2168 sq. ft. of signage.

Mr. Bainlardi: In putting together this package one of the things that I noted from the signage consultant was thinking and that he expressed to us was that he wanted to have a package in which it would be easier for the Board to approve than we had before he mentioned a clear signage sheet broken out to by individual sections we had originally and we've expanded upon that by breaking down the monument, the way finding signage in more detail. On the second page, which I can go through now we added specific conditions, which were recommended by the consultant, the first is that the shopping center identity located on the proposed pylon sign shall be at least as prominent as the largest tenant message. You'll see additional drawings which were drawings basically contained within our original submission which we've broken out into individual sheets for ease of reference. So the next sheet after this conditions for variance for instance is the pylon and we've made some changes to the proposed pylon to implement the recommendations of the signage consultant. For instance, here you'll see that we've increased the prominence of the Marketplace identity at the top of the sign. The second condition indicates that a maximum of six tenant messages shall be permitted on the proposed pylon sign in addition to the shopping center identity. The third condition reads minimum type size on the proposed pylon sign shall be six inches. So, going back to the pylon drawing we've indicated six, a maximum of six tenant messages. We've also indicated that the minimum type size for each of those signs is six inches. I think that the consultant's concern there was that we limit the total number of messages on the pylon sign so that it would be uncluttered, it would be easy to read and then we also had provided the photograph of a sample pylon sign which shows the types of materials that we were considering and also the lettering and it adds a little bit. Going back to the conditions, condition #4 is a maximum of five messages shall be permitted on each proposed way finding monument in addition to the shopping center identity. So page…after the three prints of the three monument signs we have the directional site signs and we've shown on the directional site sign a maximum of five messages. Retail with an arrow pointing to the left, Retail B with an arrow pointing straight ahead so on and so forth. For the Village Center portion of the project this is condition #5 – signage shall only be permitted on primary store façades and no signage shall be permitted on the rear façade of any store unless such façade incorporates a customer entrance. For an “in-line store” the primary façade is the front façade. End cap and freestanding stores shall be deemed to have two primary façades. So we’ve limited, in the case of a freestanding sign, signage to two the two primary façades. Same thing with an end cap which would have, you know, significant frontage either on a parking lot or, you know, on an end cap to those two main façades, the primary façades and then no signage on the rear unless a particular store incorporates a customer entrance at that location. And as indicated on the signage schedule that is subject further to the limitations that are set forth on drawing # SW-1 and that are pulled out further on separate sheets at the end of this package. So for instance on the second to last sheet we have the signage calculations which put further maximums on the total signage size of any sign that could be put on any particular façade. And it’s on a…that’s tied to the width of the actual façade that the sign is placed. So, for instance, a 25-foot store you’d be able to put a sign of a maximum of 70% of the length, a sign with a maximum with a letter height of two feet. As you get a larger store 26 to 40 feet the numbers change, where you’re allowed a shorter width on the store for the width of the sign and but you’re allowed a slightly larger type.

Mr. Manley: Could we just, for the purposed of understanding that a little bit, could we do a quick exercise here? On a 25 foot storefront…

Mr. Bainlardi: Yes. 

Mr. Manley: …that would be 25 linear feet, yes? 

Mr. Bainlardi: You would be able to allocate within the Village Center, you’d be able to take your total square footage that you’re allocated for your particular store. So, for instance if you had a 25-foot wide store and you were in-line you’d be entitled to a maximum of 50 square feet of signage.

Mr. Manley: So you get 2 feet for every linear square foot?

Mr. Bainlardi: 1 foot, you have two façades, a front façade and a rear façade.

Mr. Manley: But the rear façade doesn’t count in the calculation…

Mr. Bainlardi: It only counts for the calculation but you’re not allowed to actually put signage on that particular façade. Then what we did was for purposes of proportionality, we said O.K. you’re at 25 feet you can have a maximum width of 70% of that storefront if you were going to put all that square footage into one sign. What a…at a main entrance you could have a façade that has a main entrance you could have more than one sign, so you could break the signs up into smaller signs. And it gives flexibility within a lifestyle center where you want to have creativity and allow the retailers to do something a little more interesting. But it would not allow a 25-foot wide storeowner who is in-line to take the entire 50 feet and put it into one sign because they would be further restricted by this calculation.

Mr. Manley: O.K. What was the theory behind using the front and rear in the calculation of how many linear square feet?

Mr. Bainlardi: Well originally when we did this we were trying to, in the lifestyle center; allow square footage of signage for each storefront that either faced a parking lot or a roadway. And, but then we were concerned that having that allocation that somebody…one store could take all of their allotted square footage and just put it into one sign. So we didn’t want to allow that to happen either. We wanted to give them flexibility and allow them to create, you know, multiple signage if they so chose but not to put everything into one sign and have one huge, you know, oversized sign that wasn’t in keeping with what we were trying to achieve. That then was then taken down and restricted further as a recommendation of the signage consultant. The signage consultant felt that not want to see signage on the rear of these buildings unless the rear of the building was designed in a way that incorporated a customer entrance. So that if someone took one store took three or four units and wanted to make one larger store and then wanted to have one entrance that faced out to the rear parking lot, they could accommodate signage at that storefront. But again restricting…

Mr. Manley: Now, also wasn’t that also restricted that if it faces a main roadway not to have a sign? Was that correct or no?

Mr. Bainlardi: Which is…what?

Mr. Manley: If it faced 300, Route 300, if the rear of the building faced Route 300?

Mr. Bainlardi: Then you would not be able to put a sign there.

Mr. Manley: Even if you had an entrance?

Mr. Bainlardi: Well, no unless you were incorporating a customer entrance.

Mr. Manley: So even if the entrance, if they put an entrance on the back that faced Route 300 they would be permitted to put a sign back there?

Mr. Bainlardi: Right. But the way that the buildings are designed out at Route 300 they face the interior road so…I could point it out to you here but…so these are the buildings that are closest to Route 300…this is the rear of these buildings, these buildings are…the façades of these buildings are oriented towards the main street so there would not be a building…I couldn’t imagine a situation where we would allow a building to have it’s rear façade facing Route 300 nor would any tenants want that.

Mr. Manley: No, you wouldn’t think, I’m just trying to think outside the box a little bit here and make sure that that’s not going to happen. O.K.

Mr. Silverman: If I may? Saul Silverman, I’m the architect. Good evening again. One of the requirements of the Planning Board in the design of these buildings were to feature it so that it didn’t look anywhere like it was a rear of the building so we have to use finished materials for the developer has agreed that if it is indeed the rear of the…where the service doors are won’t be signage on there. And in some particular cases, certain cases some tenants will try for facing the parking lot and at the same time. Most tenants and most retailers don’t because of security reasons inside. They want to have one cash register location. All right. But there are certain tenants, certain clothing stores that may try to this and we have to have the flexibility to give them a sign wherever there’s a customer entrance. 

Mr. Bainlardi: O.K. Condition #6 with respect to the big box stores, no signage shall be permitted on a rear façade and we also have not, as I indicated before, allocated in the big boxes any square footage based upon any rear façade. Only one sign shall be permitted on any big box store façade, which does not incorporate a customer entrance. And then signage located on any façade, which does not incorporate a customer entrance, shall be architecturally integrated into the façade and be externally lit. This again was a recommendation of the signage consultant who felt that illuminated signs were appropriate at customer entrances or within 25 feet of a customer entrance on the main, the primary façade but he preferred to see architecturally integrated signage on the sides.  Best Buy he felt that we had done a good job with that one with achieving that goal of architecturally integrating it and that those signs would have to be externally illuminated and could not be internally illuminated signs. 

Mr. Manley: The only exception that I take so far to the big box was with respect to Best Buy. Just so you know, my thought process on that is you have the northern side that faces I guess kind of Costco and the other two buildings to the north and then on the I guess that would be the southeast side but I don’t really see the necessitation of a sign on the south or west side.

Mr. Bainlardi: The only way I can answer that is, I can tell you one that it’s important to the tenant. You know, while the tenant has worked with us and has been willing to reduce the size of the signs, the material of the signs and the lighting of the signs that particular location and that particular box it’s important to that tenant and pretty much to any tenant is going to come into freestanding box such as that to have the signage on those three façades. It’s not unusual to if you look at what else is going on in the Town and where signage has gone up on individual buildings, on freestanding buildings. We did, you know, eliminate the sign on from the rear of the building and put that restriction but you know there are a number of freestanding boxes in Town. For instance, in the corner of 17K, in the Barnes & Noble center there’s the, I think, it’s the Linens N Things there or…the freestanding which has signs on all four façades. They’re out basically on a freestanding pad out by themselves. And then, another example is the Chili’s that just went up on the corner which has signs on three sides, has a sign on the rear façade which I guess it’s visible as you’re coming off of the ramp from I-87. And, so there are many other examples in, you know, in Town.

Mr. Manley: The only thing is this is within an actual center. This isn’t a large, you know, facility that you can…when you pull in you can see the signs but the whole idea…I mean I’m sure there is going to be screening and stuff that’s going to be to the south. It may or may not be obstructed by trees; you won’t see it from the roadway. So the thought is to minimize the, you know, nobody is going to really see that from that corner. To me it seems like really a waste and an overkill. That’s just…that’s the only one I really take an exception with...is that one side. I mean the others really seem to be fine as long as they’re placed within the guidelines that you’ve set up here, which is within 25 feet of an entrance. But that’s…but you know that I’m only one individual. 

Mr. Bainlardi: The last of the conditions, a part that you had raised earlier, unused signage square footage allocated to one store may not be used for any other store. So that protects against what you were concerned about not using all of the allocated signage for one store and be able to move it over for use by another store. These are the following pages has the individual monument pylon and way finding signs laid out. And then we took from the two drawings SW-1 and SW-4 we took all the signage criteria which was established in those drawings and broke it out onto individual pages for ease of reference and again this is signage criteria which really comes out of design guidelines that were recently adopted by the Town and that were further restrictive and more specifics were added as part of our review with the architectural review board and their consultants.

Mr. Manley: The Costco drawing that you have here on the north elevation. I’ll wait until you get to that picture of it. The entrance is all the way to the left, correct? 

Mr. Bainlardi: On the north, yes.

Mr. Manley: And all the way to the right, there is another sign that says Costco Wholesale.

Mr. Bainlardi: Yes.

Mr. Manley: That looks to be larger than the sign over the main entrance. Is that to scale?

Mr. Bainlardi: That is to scale.

Mr. Manley: So, on the north side there’s going to be two, two signs?

Mr. Bainlardi: Actually, this elevation, the entrance is on the corner so it’s on the corner and this is actually mislabeled. The north, what’s showing here, as the north elevation is actually the south elevation.

Mr. Manley: And south is north?

Mr. Bainlardi: South is north, correct. The north elevation is the rear elevation, which is facing the hillside in a residential neighborhood.

Mr. Donovan: It may be helpful if you give that description while standing at that map so you can show where the stores and where the different signs would be.

Mr. Bainlardi: This is the north elevation this is the south. This is west and east. The entrance for the Costco building is on the corner.

Mr. Manley: So it’s between the west and south corners of the building? 

Mr. Bainlardi: Yes. And so the other two signs that are one is here facing the drive isle and this large parking lot. The second is this elevation here facing west and facing this larger parking lot.

Chairperson Cardone: And the gas station is on the…?

Mr. Bainlardi: The gas station is here to the west. And this is a…it’s a fueling facility that’s for members only so any Costco members may utilize that facility.

Mr. Manley: So for the most part Costco has four identifying signs that say Costco Wholesale: one in the main entrance and three on each of the other sides with would be south, west and east elevations? I just want to make sure I understand.

Mr. Bainlardi: That’s correct. 

Mr. Manley: And there are no other entrances? No secondary entrances?

Mr. Bainlardi: There are secondary entrances. There is an entrance on the west elevation, which is the tire center, you see some overhead doors there where they do tire installation and there is a doorway there. On the southern façade you see a small sign that says liquor sales that has its own entrance, a separate and aside from the entrance to the main Costco Wholesale Club because in New York…

Mr. Manley: It’s required the Liquor Authority requires that. Liquor Sales, the writing Liquor Sales and Tire Center included in your calculations.

Mr. Bainlardi: Correct. 

Mr. Manley: O.K. Do you plan to put over those doorways anything that says Costco Wholesale over those? 

Mr. Bainlardi: No. No.

Mr. Manley: That’s all I have.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions or comments from the Board? 

Do we have any questions or comments from the public? 

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion we close the hearing.

Mr. Manley: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ronald Hughes: No



          James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes



      Ruth Eaton: Absent

Michael Maher: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

(Time Noted – 8:31 PM)
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Chairperson Cardone: On the application of WB Interchange Associates, LLC. seeking area variances for the amount of total square footage allowed for signage and the limitation of the number of pylon and freestanding signs. 

Mr. Manley: I would…it's my opinion that I would like to reserve decision. It would certainly give the Board an opportunity to review the documents that we received tonight along with the further testimony of the applicant and that way each of us can craft what we believe are the most important points that we'd like to incorporate in the conditions of a variance if it should be granted.

Mr. Hughes: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey

Mr. Donovan: Wait a second; I don't understand what you just did. You didn't make a motion did you?

Mr. Manley: No.

Ms. Gennarelli: Oh, sorry, he seconded it.

Chairperson Cardone: He was making conversation.

Mr. Manley: I was making a comment.

Mr. Donovan: Just tell me that you were making a comment, right?

Mr. Manley: Right.

Mr. Donovan: That you wanted more time. The Public Hearing has been closed; we have 62 days to make a decision.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Manley: Correct. 


Mr. Donovan: So you are indicating that you want additional time to…?

Mr. Manley: Correct.

Chairperson Cardone: I think that that's a good idea.

Mr. Manley: We have 62 days, probably won't need it I think that I'll be ready to have something for the next meeting.

Mr. McKelvey: It's just everything came in…some stuff came in late.

Mr. Hughes: Some of it came in today.

Mr. McKelvey: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Then I'll move it. 

Mr. Donovan: Well I don't think you need a motion to do nothing.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Ms. Drake: Right.

Mr. Donovan: You need a motion to do something.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Hughes: Well we have up to 62 days.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.  

Mr. Donovan: That's what the State Law says.

Chairperson Cardone: So we are reserving decision on that one.

Mr. Manley: Is there anything else that the applicant needed to submit before…

Chairperson Cardone: No.

Mr. Manley: …we made that final? No?
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Applicant is seeking area variance for more than the allowed 25% of the rooms to include kitchens to construct a 140-room hotel with a kitchen in each room.

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Northeast Realty Holdings Corporate Blvd and Route 17K. 

Mr. Wojciekofsky: I'm Troy Wojciekofsky of Fuss & O'Neill, we're consultants to the applicant Northeast Realty Holdings, LLC. John Hoggan is also here tonight; he is the attorney for the applicant. The application we have before your Board is for consideration of an area variance related to hotel project on the corner of Corporate Boulevard and Route 17K. The project was previously approved by the Planning Board for site plan approval and the application before this Board, at this time, is for relief from the requirement of 25% maximum kitchens within the hotel. It's a 140-room hotel; we're requesting at this time that each room have a kitchen within it. The application that was submitted to the Board went through the balancing tests and in summary we concluded in our application that there'd be no detrimental effects or impacts to the community and in fact since we were last before your Board, the Planning Board has also made a consistency determination with respect to SEQRA that there is no additional impacts as compared to the original determination that was made. In fact, some of the impacts will be reduced mainly traffic. Thru traffic will be reduced. If the Board wants me to go through any more detail on this project, you know I think a complete presentation was made last time. We're here for questions. I don't know if John wants to add anything to this presentation or just field questions at this time.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. I do have one question. 

Mr. Wojciekofsky:  Sure.

Chairperson Cardone: I notice on the two bedroom, you have two bathroom facilities and according to the Code 185-27-D-2 each hotel or motel room should have an area of not less than 300 sq. ft., each unit shall have a bath or shower facility - one toilet facility and a sink.  

Mr. Wojciekofsky:  Yes. It's my understanding that the sample layouts for the rooms were somewhat perceptual and preliminary. You know we've seen that. That was pointed out in the Code that requirement for one toilet so I would imagine that the, you know, the layout would be changed to accommodate that, you know if not, then I would assume would have to come back for a variance for that. This time it's our intention to comply with that aspect of the Zoning.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Thank you. Do we have any questions from the Board?

Mr. Hughes: I think there's a lot of questions here. I read and heard what you had to say about where you feel you're at with the environmental aspects of this thing but I don't think you're even in the right type of action the way you are pursuing it. And I don't agree with the Planning Board and what they have lead you up to at this point and maybe my perspective of it is wrong but from what I've read and what I know about the courses and

training that I have I think we're looking at something different than you are. If I may, I'll read a letter or maybe Grace would you read what we received?

Chairperson Cardone: From?

Mr. Hughes: From the attorneys group representing the neighbor.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Mr. Donovan: Which letter are you referring to…

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: …because there's a couple of them.

Chairperson Cardone: Point me to it.

Mr. Hughes: Well, yes.

Mr. Donovan: They may be here in the audience maybe they want to read it themselves.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Hughes: Well that may be true. I'm just not satisfied with the three different versions of the same story I'm getting, one from the Planning Board, one from you and one from your opponent. 

Mr. Donovan: With regard to which issue?

Mr. Hughes: SEQRA compliance.

Mr. Donovan: O.K. I can answer the question. I can't guarantee you you're going to be happy with my answer.

Mr. Hughes: Well I want to know what the real answer is not what…

Mr. Donovan: I'll give you the real answer. The real answer it's a Type I Action and there is coordinated review. So if the lead agency is the Planning Board, this applicant…

Mr. Hughes: Why were we not listed as a participating agency?

Mr. Donovan: Well, we would be…

Mr. Hughes: If it's a coordinated action don't we have to be?

Mr. Donovan: Do we have to be? Is it better that we are? Sure. What's the harm of us not being listed on a piece of paper? I mean, do we have notice of the application relative to the request for 100% of kitchen facilities? Yes, cause it was referred to us. So we have full knowledge as far as that's concerned.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah and about responsibility coverage?

Mr. Donovan: But…remember that…let me just go back, amended site plan approval is required from the Planning Board and the Planning Board can't act until we act but we needed their action on SEQRA as lead agency before we could act. Very similar with what happened with Marketplace and I know that may not be an answer that you want to hear to that question either.

Mr. Hughes: Well no, what the law is it is but I'm not convinced by what I'm reading that that's where we're…I know how we got here. 

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: Do we belong here with the circumstances?

Mr. Donovan: Yes, I don't know if you've had the opportunity to take a look at the SEQRA consistency determination issued by the Planning Board on April 3rd?

Mr. Hughes: I did.

Mr. Donovan: And it lists the amendment of March 24th that the Planning Board has determined that there would be no change in the impact study in the FEIS for the previous approval regarding the proposal to include rooms with kitchens of 100% hotel. 

That's the Planning Board's jurisdiction as lead agency relative to SEQRA.

Mr. Hughes: Did you finish reading that whole package? 

Mr. Donovan: The whole package or the whole paragraph?

Mr. Hughes: Well, both. As it goes on it becomes more convoluted from where I sit. I don't see where they're 100% right. Maybe I'll take the advice of our Chairperson and let everybody else say what they have to say maybe it'll come to out during their unit.

Mr. Manley: The issue with regard to the area variance and I've had time to read the meeting minutes is this Board's determination has to determine whether or not do they feel that the increase from 25% to 100% is or is not excessive or if the Board wishes to grant the variance based on the information presented by the applicant. Correct?

Mr. Hughes: The word substantial.

Mr. Donovan: Well there's a threshold issue before that because the issue that was raised that was raised when the applicant first appeared was also raised by opponents of the application is whether or not it's an area variance or a use variance. I asked the applicant to prepare information on that, submit it to the Board and opponents of it did as well. I've taken a look at everything that has been submitted and it's my conclusion that the request is for an area variance not a use variance since kitchen facilities are permitted. So, since up to 25% are permitted then this Board to go to 100%, in my opinion, is an area variance and the Board has to be convinced that the criteria for an area variance has been satisfied. 

Mr. Hughes: Substantial is the word. To me, 75% is substantial. That's three times the amount you are allowed and that's what I just can't around. I just cannot get past that and it's part of the things that you have to prove that we need to put into the formula. You talk about the weighing and the balance that's generic and it's on every case but each case is weighed on it's own merits and I think that 75% overage is more than substantial. 

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. that is one of the criteria. Yes.

Mr. Hughes: There's other things I don't agree with too but that's one of them.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other comments from the Board? Do we have any questions or comments from the public? If so, please state your name and address.

Ms. Berson: Good evening, Marilyn Berson, I am with Teahan & Constantino. We had submitted additional letters to the Board. We do represent two property owners both of whom have been found by the Appellate Division to have standing to raise concerns regarding the project and in particular, one of those individuals lives in a 1-family residential property literally two doors from this proposed site. And, just to comment on the SEQRA issue, you are talking about 140 kitchens going in, in addition to what we believe is also going to be central dining facilities since that must be in a hotel to be a hotel. I don't think the Planning Board has looked at all at the issue of odors that are going to be emanating from this proposed hotel. And I use hotel very loosely and I think that's going to have a very direct impact on one of the two individuals that we represent, in particular who is two doors down. And I don't see one mention in the SEQRA consistency statement, which by the way an involved agency is supposed to be listed. It isn't just a technicality. The Zoning Board of Appeals is an involved agency and you can't gloss over the fact that the Zoning Board has not involved at all in the SEQRA process and isn't even listed as an involved agency by the Planning Board. So that to me is just something that you know frankly is being glossed over in the legal advise that you're being given. I will also…

Mr. Donovan: I am not glossing over it. I addressed it. I didn't gloss over it. I object to your characterization.

Ms. Berson: Well we…the Zoning Board has to give approval to this application and an agency that has to give approval is an involved agency that... 

Mr. Donovan: And, we have been deliberating, we have been deliberating for several months. 

Ms. Berson: Now with respect to…one of the Chair brought up the issue which was also brought up in the letter from my law firm to the Planning Board and I'm assuming a copy was given to this Board which is that the plans that were submitted to the Planning Board and this Board show that the intention of the applicant is to have studios, one-bedroom and two-bedroom apartments and the plan currently before this Board and the Planning Board that has not been withdrawn or modified is that those two and three bedroom units have more than one bathroom. And, just a representation by the applicant this evening without any modification to the application or the plans that have been submitted puts this Board in a position where if it should approve this very substantial variance it's doing so based upon plans that in other respects do not meet the Zoning Code. Finally, I would just note that as been pointed out in the letter of April 23rd to the Board I believe that if the Board goes back and looks at the narrative that was provided by the applicant with respect to the criteria that it must meet in order to obtain the variance that it's seeking for 100% of these units that as we pointed out in at least two communications to the Board and I hope and I know that the Board will look at that carefully when it deliberates on the application that the criteria just has not been met in this case. And, I won't repeat what's been raised in the letters because I think it's been discussed at length. Thank you. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions or comments from the public? Any other questions from the Board? 

Mr. Hughes: In addition to what I've said already I would like some more time to read some of the stuff that has just been brought in within the last week from both sides of this issue and I would urge that we hold this Public Hearing open for some further comments. I would like to have time for our Chairperson and the Planning Board's Chairperson and the Town Council to be as well aware. I don't think we are in compliance here with SEQRA and other things and I want to be sure before I move ahead. 

Chairperson Cardone: Is that a motion?

Mr. Hughes: Yes, I'll convert it to a motion. 

Mr. Donovan: Which would be a motion to continue the Public Hearing until?

Mr. Hughes: Continue the Public Hearing and hold this over until we have enough information.


Mr. Donovan: But we held to a date certain, which would be whatever the fourth Thursday in May is…?

Chairperson Cardone: May 22nd.

Mr. Donovan: May 22nd.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a second to that motion?

Mr. McKelvey: Well I think I'll second that too. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ronald Hughes: Yes



          James Manley: No

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes



      Ruth Eaton: Absent

Michael Maher: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: This will be held open until May 22nd. 

Mr. Hughes: Can we make sure that all of…everyone concerned gets back to us information if they have anything?

Chairperson Cardone: Right. One of the things that I would like to see are the exact plans for the two-bedroom suites.

Mr. Hughes: And not just limiting it to that, if you have any other things that are a variance we would like to know about it now. 

Mr. Donovan: Well, let me just, with respect to the issue of the multiple toilets that's not before us so we couldn't rule on that and if the Board was inclined to grant the variance and they came back in with multiple toilets and in fact, they were in violation of the Ordinance they need to come back here. 

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: We haven't noticed a Public Hearing…that issue was brought to the floor to my knowledge yesterday. O.K. so, we haven't noticed a Public Hearing for that. There is not an application for that. That issue hasn't been briefed to us so even if the Board was inclined to move ahead and issue the…we couldn't include it even if the Board wanted to.

Mr. Hughes: Right.

Mr. Donovan: You can't.

Mr. Hughes: We can only rule on what's been brought before us. 

Mr. Donovan: Correct.

Chairperson Cardone: That's right.

Mr. Hughes: Everybody understand? 

Mr. McKelvey: Do you understand that?

Mr. Hoggan: Good evening, I'm John Hoggan, the attorney for the applicant. I just want to get some clarification on what additional information that the Board is asking for this evening. It seems to me at least we've submitted everything we need in support of our variance application. We've addressed the criteria in the Statute. We've addressed the questions in regard to SEQRA and with regard to whether this is a use or area variance. Now the question with regard to the additional toilets as was explained by the project engineer those are conceptual plans. The applicant cannot seek or obtain a Building Permit to construct a facility that's not in compliance with the Town Code or with the variances that it's obtained. If the applicant decides to seek a variance for the toilets they will be back before you. We are not asking for it at this time. The sole purpose of presenting those conceptual plans to you was with conceptual plans that you would get an idea generally of what they were proposing by way of the kitchen facilities not the bathroom facilities. So I would urge the Board to at a minimum clarify what additional information they would want from the applicant and strongly urge the Board to reconsider the decision to keep this Hearing open for another month. The applicant has had this project delayed for a substantial amount of time through the litigiousness that has gone on before and it's entitled to have it's application heard if it's submitted everything the Board has asked for. 

Mr. Manley: I just want to add that if you're looking to have a project that has a different look and you're thought is to keep coming and getting another bite at the apple, I would have concerns with that.

Mr. Hoggan: My understanding is that it's not the applicant's intent at all. That there was no intent to seek a subsequent variance with regard to the toilet facilities if this issue was not addressed or realized that there was an issue there until you received the letter. 

Mr. Manley: But what I'm saying is just so that you know that sometimes individuals will present something and then change it and then present something else and constantly do that until they get ultimately what they're looking for and I wouldn't be very…

Mr. Hoggan: It's my understanding that the applicant has no desire to segment it's applications to this Board that it wants to get a project approved that it can build and that it can build in this market as the engineer represented to you earlier there never was an intent to seek and there is not an intent to seek a second toilet facility, so.

Ms. Drake: Can you provide us with another sketch plan of the layout without that second bath toilet? 

Mr. Hoggan: Certainly can.

Ms. Drake: I think that's what we're asking for.   

Chairperson Cardone: That's what I was asking for.

Mr. Hughes: And what about the issue that was brought up about the prospect of apartments and studios and things of that nature?

Mr. Hoggan: I don't know who brought up that.

Mr. Hughes: Oh, it's been brought up I don't know either.

Mr. Hoggan: It's just this is an extended stay hotel they are found throughout New York State throughout the country. Everybody knows what's being proposed here and it's simply a red herring to suggest they are trying to sneak in an apartment building.

Mr. Hughes: No, I don't know if that was said at all. I'm trying to be fair with everybody. 

Mr. Hoggan: Right.

Mr. Hughes: There's nothing in the wind about studio's or two bedroom apartments or anything?

Mr. Hoggan: A studio refers to a room that doesn't have any separate sleeping quarters. It's not a designation that has any significance under this Town's Code certainly and certainly not seeking any variances from this Board to construct a studio hotel.

Mr. Hughes: So the nature of all of the spaces are for long-term stay?

Mr. Hoggan: For extended stay hotel rooms which as the industry's data shows really isn't any much more of a long term stay than a traditional hotel. 

Mr. Hughes: Counsel, could you prepare a request of information we want and have our secretary forward it and get it together?

Mr. Donovan: Well, I'm not quite sure what you want so I don't know…

Mr. Hughes: There seems to be an impasse of understanding of what they're trying to design and build here.

Mr. Hoggan: I don't believe that to be the case at all. Respectfully, I believe we've been very clear about what we're doing.

Mr. Donovan: Well let's just take a look at what the Code says, hotel and motel use shall not contain kitchen facilities of any type in more than 25% in a particular hotel or motel. That's the issue before us tonight. Shall not be used as apartments for non-transient tenants and shall not be connected by interior doors in groups of more than two. So, tell me what you want and I'm happy to put it into a letter.

Mr. Hughes: If you're satisfied with what they're telling you?

Mr. Donovan: Listen, I'm just your lawyer so if there is additional information that you think you need to make an informed decision tell me what that is and I'm happy to put it in a letter or to give it to Betty or whatever it needs to happen.

Mr. Hughes: If you're happy with it, then…?

Mr. Donovan: Now you're acting like the lawyer, you're putting words in my mouth. I just answer the legal…if there is additional information that you think you need let me know or let the applicant know.

Mr. Hughes: A statement from the applicant that there will be no long-term rental situations there.

Mr. Donovan: Define extended stay.

Mr. Hoggan: You would like a definition of extended stay?

Mr. Hughes: At a minimum.

Mr. Donovan: Well if that's an industry standard then I presume that is something you should be able to do. 

Mr. Hoggan: Yes, we will submit a definition of what an extended hotel is.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. that will help us in our decision.

Mr. Hoggan: And you also want a revised drawing of what the two bedroom and one bedroom will look like.

Ms. Drake: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Hoggan: O.K. Are you continuing the Public Hearing or are we going to close the Public Hearing?

Mr. Hughes: Yes, we've already voted on that.

Mr. Hoggan: Subject to receipt of that information.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Donovan: Correct.

Mr. Hoggan: Which is it? Continue keeping the Public Hearing open…?

Mr. Donovan: The resolution that was adopted by the Board was to continue to keep open the Public Hearing until May 22nd. 

Mr. Hoggan: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: And I think one of the reasons was that time was needed to go over the materials that were recently submitted.

Mr. Hoggan: Thank you.

Mr. Hughes: Thank you.
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Chairperson Cardone: Before proceeding the Board will take a short adjournment to confer with counsel regarding legal questions raised by tonight's applications. I would ask if you would step out into the hallway and we will call you in shortly.
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Chairperson Cardone: Under Other Board Business, Vincent T. and Maria Marino at 430 South Plank Road and I believe Mr. Gaba is here to address the Board.

Mr. Gaba: Good evening. Before I begin there is a point I want to clear up just to make sure there is no problem with me representing this applicant. In 1996, I was representing the Board. This applicant came in for a use variance for this property. I represented the Board in regard to that application. I can assure you no client confidences were provided. There is no attorney client information given. Everything I know about the case is a matter of public record. I do not believe that this constitutes a conflict of interests but having said that if the Board has a problem representing this applicant I'll step aside and they can get another attorney. All that I would ask is this be put over for at least a month so that they can have someone else come in. Does the Board have a problem with me representing this applicant?

Chairperson Cardone: I don't. I do not know how the rest of the Board feels about that.

Mr. Donovan: There is no legal impediment because obviously it's not as if there were contract negotiations over price or value so anything presumably that was submitted, I'll strike presumably, whatever was submitted to the Board is public record. It is not confidential. So whatever decision that you authored on behalf of the Board was at the Board's direction and as a result of the public information that remains in the file. So there is no legal impediment to you representing this applicant. If the Board thinks there is any appearance you should let Mr. Gaba know that.

Mr. Hughes: I don't have a problem with that but in the same tone I would like to be perfectly frank and open with you too there was a couple of maneuvers that went on here that I don't think were above board so I would like you to know that.   

Mr. Gaba: What maneuvers were those?

Mr. Hughes: It was trying…the applicant has done things in the past on this project that weren't according to the rules. There was some chicanery that went on. They were building against permits that weren't issued and I believe, the application for the use permit was not obtained properly to begin with. So, if you would like to review that record to see how it was obtained and what conditions were set forth to it then you would understand why it was denied originally. So, if you would like time to take to read all that…

Mr. Gaba: Oh no, I'm intimately familiar with the record on this. Let me layout…

Mr. Hughes: O.K. Just as long as you know. 

Mr. Gaba: …what our view is on this and we'll see what we can…I don't believe there was any chicanery. Although I admit mistakes were made and I think the applicant absolutely…

Mr. Hughes: Just recently they tried to avoid us by taking it back to the Planning Board.

Mr. Gaba: They went to the Planning Board to ask for a referral to this Board.

Mr. Hughes: Hm hmm.

Mr. Gaba: Not to get around this Board to get to this Board. 

Mr. Hughes: Hm hmm.

Mr. Gaba: But anyway, well if I could proceed?

Chairperson Cardone: Please.

Mr. Gaba: This is a request for a rehearing of the Board's decision on a referral from the Planning Board. Requests for rehearing are somewhat unusual. I don't know if the Boards even entertained one before in regard to that and although I know you have able counsel I'd like to just have I know you've got a long night ahead…

Mr. Donovan: Could you let the attorney that was here before representing someone else know that. No.

Mr. Gaba: We'll issue a press release. I have a copy of the applicable section of the Town Law and I'd like to hand it up to you…just to kind of share with you where it is we're coming from...where I think the standard is on this type of a request. This is Town Law 267...
 
Mr. Donovan: Betty is going to make you walk around with the microphone.
 
Ms. Gennarelli: Oh, yes. Thank you. Thank you very much Dave. That comes off of the stand. 
 
Mr. Gaba: I used to be a game show host. (Handing paperwork out to the Board)
  
Ms. Gennarelli: Do you have one for the record?
 
Mr. Gaba: Yes.
 
Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you.
 
Mr. Gaba: I'll read over the section and I'm sure you are familiar with the gist of it which is that the Zoning Board may grant a rehearing upon a unanimous vote. The grounds for granting a rehearing as you can see from the second page, which is the facts commentary to this particular section of Town Law is that, you usually want new evidence that might lead to a different decision.  That's not to say that the evidence presented necessarily would make you change your minds. That's not the point of an application for a rehearing, come in and present all over again the application that was previously made. It's enough that perhaps if you grant a rehearing and the evidence is put in a second time maybe you'll come up with a different decision.  You are not required to, the only question is do you want to allow another hearing on this. You are not be asked to make the vote, hey we would change our minds and do something else. The question is let me look at this a second time and as you can see from the practice commentary...a new hearing...new evidence isn't necessarily to grant a rehearing, its enough that there may have been inaccuracy in the facts as presented the first time. Now I hope tonight to present to this Board new evidence which once you consider the totality of it you'll find might lead to a different outcome. Might, again you're not binding yourselves to anything. And at the same time, I am confident I can show you that there were factual inaccuracies and legal mistakes in the presentation made to this Board the first time. So that's the standard that we're looking at on this type of an application. Now before I go into the application proper and again we'll keep it very short here. I just think, I know you have at least one new Member, it would be a good idea...I have Greg Shaw our engineer with us here tonight. He'll just briefly, very, very briefly go over what the proposed project is because it will help you orient yourselves when I go through the history of this and how we came to this pass and its a very simple site plan so I don't think it will take Greg very long to explain it. I guess I'd better give him the mic. Oh, he's got one.
 
Ms. Gennarelli: We have two mics.
 
Mr. Shaw: O.K. Thank you. I'm sure, as the majority of the Board Members are familiar with this site. It's located at the intersection of South Plank Road and Lakeside Road. It totals one acre and it is located in the B zone. I was involved with this project back in the '90's when we came before this Board and got a use variance and area variances and then were probably returned to the Planning Board and got site plan approval for the conversion of the structure which was the former Dan Leghorn Fire Company into a childcare center. On that plan there was a structure in the rear of the property, which was, called existing garage to remain an that is the building that is before you with respect to the use variance. It is a building whose dimensions are 16 ft x 36 ft for a total of 576 sq ft, which is proposed to be used as a classroom as part of the daycare center. All of the site improvements that you see on the plan presently exist. We are not proposing any but then the Planning Board if we ever get to the Planning Board they have some thoughts of their own. We are providing 21 spaces, which is required by zoning. And that is it. Thank you.
 
Mr. Gaba: O.K. Now in regard to that proposed site plan what we're doing is we're taking the fourth year children, the 4 year olds from the main building and we're moving that class, and we use the term class loosely when we describe this it's just a group of children, into the accessory building that's now been improved from what was a garage and now it's an accessory out building there. The main building will not have more than perhaps ten additional students in it. What we're doing is we're expanding the existing classrooms and all the hallways between just to make more space for the students...the children that are now. It's not like we're substantially changing this use and adding many more students or anything along those lines. What we're doing is just basically improving our interior structure. Now back in 1996 this was of course this was the old Dan Leghorn Firehouse and plot. And at that time they agreed to sell the property to Maria Marina doing business under the name Building Blocks.  (Mr. Gaba approached the Board with paperwork) And the minutes are pretty straightforward. They came in and made a presentation. Look its the old Dan Leghorn Firehouse this is what we want to do and you'll read through you'll see there wasn't very much discussed except for presentation of the nature of the use and you go to the resolution. The resolution says very simply that a use variance for this and you're getting an area variance because the bulk requirements applicable I believe would be those of the R-2, which is the most restrictive zone in which this is allowed. So the resolution gives both of those. The resolution does not expressly at least impose any conditions upon the use. Now this is a critical point, this next issue, it's issue of law and its frankly a little bit arcane but well established and that particular proposition is that when a use variance is granted its tantamount to a zone change. The property that receives a use variance is not a legal non-conforming use. It is a legal conforming use and the applicable bulk requirements are those of the most restrictive zoning, which the proposed use is allowed. This a point which, I mean you don't have to believe me ask your own counsel I'm sure that they will agree with us on this particular point but just to drive it home because its really key at least from our point of view on this. I have with me an excerpt from two learned treaties in fact they are recognized there's as being leading treaties on New York law. One is Patti Sarkin's New York Zoning Law in Practice, there is Darryl (Daren) Rathkopf's Zoning Law in Practice and I even have a second department case all of which state word for word exactly what I just said to you. In addition to that I have a copy of your own decision or at least the first page of it, which is really the only one that's relevant on this particular point in the recent Patti Cake Playhouse application and what happened in that particular case was that the property owner had been given a use variance for daycare and they wanted to spread the use by building a new larger building and to in fact include a second lot and this Board said you don't need a use variance. You are not expanding a non-conforming use. You have a conforming use and you can build a larger building to house your conforming use assuming that you meet the bulk requirements.  So again, just and I hope I'm not carrying coals to New Castle here but if I could just hand that up just for you to read over. (Mr. Gaba approached with paperwork) And again, this is a point that I would urge you to confer with your counsel on. I don't think it sends a lot (inaudible). Well in 1996 we have our use variance, our use variance makes us a legal conforming use, a legal conforming use for a daycare center on our property and what happened at that time was well after getting site plan approval from the Planning Board Building Blocks opened its doors and it started taking in children from the Town of Newburgh and providing daycare services for them. And, the business did very well, it took off and they need to use the garage on the property at that point really for not much more than storage for the daycare use. It had as stated anticipated when they applied to this Board the need for toys and you know mulch and things like that, paper goods what have you. As the years went by they found that a summer camp would be an additional daycare service that they could provide. Now the summer camp was supposed to operate as planned in the main building and they would use the playground facility in the back and they would use the parking lot. But there would be times, particularly early in the morning when the children were waiting for buses to take them to their destinations. They'd go swimming or bowling whatever. And it would be hot in the morning and the garage had a big rolling door and the big rolling door would open. So the kids would sometimes go in the garage. They wouldn't stay in the garage for a long amount of time, they'd just get out of the sun, they'd wait for the bus they'd go on their way. And, that's how things went from year to year at Building Blocks until 2005. In 2005, Mrs. Marino thought well you know we've been using that building, my business is doing very well, I think I would like to have some of my office space put in the garage as well and she applied for a Building Permit. A Building Permit to use the building for office space as well as storage. That Building Permit is on file I have an additional copy but I think I've handed up enough to you already. And so they made improvements to the building, it was done sometime in '05 and they got their C.O. at that time and they used it for office space and storage. But now they don't have a big rolling garage door anymore on the front because they've prettied up the building and there is a little bit of stucco and they've got the Building Blocks on it and what have you and time for summer camp rolls around and the kids are waiting for the bus again. And the kids want to get out of the sun and so the kids start going in the building. That was wrong. And they should have put a stop to it, the building is not sprinklered, the building was approved…its still a daycare use mind you…but its not habitable space and the difference, the chief difference is sprinklering. They made a mistake. They shouldn't have allowed the kids in. It was O.K. when it was a garage temporarily but this was a different story. It went by a year and nobody said anything. It happens. All right. It happens. So the next year comes by, it's 2006 and Mrs. Marino does the exact same thing again during the winter months its just office and storage, things start up for the summer, the summer camp is back. Only now, now she's thinking gee this is working out great with the summer camp kids going in there maybe I should allow it could be used as habitable space and so she asked to have a smoke detector inspection done. And she asked to have the Town Code Enforcement Officer come out and take a look at it and things got bad because when he came out he saw the kids in the building and he wrote an Order To Remedy and he said we are revoking your Building Permit, you can't be doing this, the building is not sprinklered and we were a…she was chastised and believe me nobody felt worse about it that Building Blocks did because they love kids. They are not going to put kids at risk intentionally. The business they're in it seems to me its just common sense but be that as it may this is where the first, as far as I'm concerned, mistake was made and started to go wrong. The Building Inspector was absolutely right to issue the Order To Remedy and he was absolutely right to say we are going to pull your C.O. but this is the letter that he wrote and I'd like to hand that up to you because this is another just key thing as far as how things went wrong here. The Building Inspector sent that letter as a follow-up to his Order To Remedy and the most significant line in terms of why we're standing here tonight is the one I've highlighted. It says you need to apply to the Zoning Board. I don't think they did. I could be wrong but that's our position. We don't believe they did. This was a legal permitted use. If they wanted to build a whole new building to house more kids I think they were entitled to do it subject to meeting the bulk requirements and getting site plan approval from the Planning Board but they didn't need a use variance. But the Building Inspector said they did. So again, they really did feel bad about this so the next thing they did was they hired Greg Shaw and they hired an attorney and they went to the Planning Board. And let me hand you up that. This is the cover letter of the application to the Planning Board and the significant page of the environmental assessment form - EAF and both of them say, the applicant realizes that prior to your Board, being the Planning Board, granting site plan approval and expansion of the use variance must first be granted by the Zoning Board of Appeals for use of the property as a daycare classroom. Now those last few words you would think wouldn't have a heck of a lot of significance but we'll talk about that in a minute as to how that worked in. We, because the Building Inspector had said we needed it, went to the Planning Board and said send us to the Zoning Board. I think we were wrong. (Mr. Gaba approached with paperwork) The EAF file by the way says we need a use variance. This is what's attached. So it’s the December of 2006 we're in front of the Planning Board and at the risk of sounding unctuous or ploying, I could tell you that Mike Donnelly, the Planning Board attorney is a very good and capable attorney. And when this came in, he knew darn well that we didn't need a use variance but he didn't know exactly what it was we did need or why it was we were asking to go to the Zoning Board. And I think the Planning Board was confused on that point as well but there we were, first appearance, hi we need site plan approval please give a referral to the Zoning Board of Appeals. So Mike, having talked to the Board, said I'll write 'em a referral letter and I'd like to hand up that referral letter. The referral letter that was sent to this Zoning Board from the Planning Board and the language in it I think really confirms that we didn't need a use variance for purposes of putting us into that other building. I think the question was more of they say they have a classroom use, is a classroom use different from a daycare use? I mean the Town Code draws a distinction between nursery schools and daycares. They are treated the same in terms of the bulk requirements and where they are permitted for use but nursery school is limited to pre-school children whereas daycare is more. Not to mention having called it as we did a classroom perhaps we were adding some educational element to this, I mean, Mike had no way of knowing that the Planning Board had no way of knowing that. We were coming in using this term classroom and I think it really threw a lot of confusion into what it was we were proposing. I don't think the Board ever understood what we were talking about is taking the four-year students and moving them over into the garage. Anyway his language is the Planning Board has now asked me to write to you in order to refer this matter to you for either a ruling as to whether the scope and contour of this proposal falls within the protection of the use variance granted earlier by you or for consideration of granting an enlarged use variance so as to allow this additional classroom use on the site. And I think by that he meant if this was just a nursery school and wasn't daycare before perhaps if they're asking for some educational use, they would need a use variance and we would indeed but that wasn't what we were proposing. Anyway this is Mike's letter and that probably end up with me following up with that just so you're not taking my word for it this is Mike Donnelly's March of '08 letter to the Planning Board because as I mentioned to Mr. Hughes when the case came to me I said well gee you've gotta get back before the Zoning Board and straighten this out and the best way is to go for a referral from the Planning Board. And, Mike sent this letter clarifying what he meant in the first one. And I'll read you the core on that before I hand it up. This way I'm not walking so much. When the applicant appeared before you, you being the Planning Board, on January 4, 2007 you questioned whether the proposed classroom (italics) used what's authorized by the use variance that allowed a daycare center (again italics) you therefore authorized me to write to the applicant…to write with the applicant's consent a letter to the Zoning Board of Appeals seeking clarification from that Board as to whether the scope and contour of the classroom proposal falls within the protection of the use variance granted earlier. (Mr. Gaba approached with paperwork) All right. So at this point, the applicant is before the Planning Board. They've come in under the misapprehension that they need what they think is a use variance and the Planning Board has sent them over to you for something completely different. As if things weren't confused enough as was the applicant then prepares an application to this Board and what does the applicant ask for? Not an interpretation, not some sort of finding that the proposed use falls within the contours of the prior use variance instead they ask simply for a use variance. The applicant was still as per the Building Department laboring under the misconception that they had an illegal non-conforming use that they were to expand. And I have the salient portions of the application. You'll see only the box for use variance is checked. You'll see that the write up that was submitted has absolutely nothing to do with a request for an interpretation. They asked only for a use variance. (Mr. Gaba approached with paperwork) Now when the applicant came before this Board asking for a use variance. The presentation that…

Mr. Manley: May I just interrupt you…when was this application here brought in…the one that you just passed to us? 

Mr. Gaba: '07, May of '07.

Mr. Manley: There seems to be some confusion. The only on that I think that's in the file is this one here. 

Mr. Donovan: Somehow the timing doesn't make sense because the Public Hearing was February of '07.

Mr. Manley: Yes, this is the one for February.

Mrs. Marino: I think it was February.

Mr. Manley: And this is dated May. We never heard it in May.

Mr. Gaba: There was a January submission and that's an amended version of that. I don't know why it's dated that. But, yes, that would have been before then…it's that application that this hearing is on.

Mr. Manley: Because there is nothing in the file for this.

Mr. Gaba: I don't know how the date got on there but that's definitely the application.

Mr. Donovan: Betty, that's what you have?  

Ms. Gennarelli: (referring to the file application) That's the (original application from the February 1, 2007) application from the file.

Mr. Gaba: But that says County Planning Referral.

Mr. Donovan: Yes, it's all stapled together. I'll find it Steve. Without going through it word for word there's an application that is in the ZBA file that's handwritten dated February 1 of '07 as opposed to this on which is mostly typed from May 3 of '07. Now the attachment that contains the…I say attachment…the addendum to application site plan amendment, Vincent T. Marino, Maria Marino appears at least from first glance to be exactly the same. I don't know the reason…

Mr. Gaba: Well, be that as it may, be that as it may, an application was submitted and certainly if you go over the minutes of the Zoning Board meeting where the presentation was made. The presentation was made only on a use variance. There was absolutely no presentation to this Board regarding the requested interpretation. So, none of these facts were laid before you. You had no way of knowing all the things that I've said up to this date. All that happened was the applicant came in and said let me expand my non-con...if you read through the minutes I'll guarantee you that they will bear this out. Let me expand my non-conforming use and this Board said, and I think very rightly, where is your proof that you meet the criteria for a use variance? How can we possibly grant this for you if you don't prove to us you have the use proof? And so the Board denied the request for a use variance and if that was all that happened I think that we wouldn't be here tonight because we could have either gone for a further referral…for the Planning Board or perhaps even reapplied to this Board directly either by a denial from the Building Inspector or perhaps on this type of application. But the point is that you didn't, you went on to make findings in regard to the Planning Board referral for an interpretation and on that no formal written resolution was ever adopted. There is a brief statement in the record that they don't think the interpretation should be granted but there's really no findings and no resolution ever was prepared or filed on that. Now you can certainly grant lesser-requested relief. If somebody comes in and asks for a ten-foot side yard variance you can give him a five-foot side yard variance but you can't grant them something they never asked for. And the same thing stands true in regard to denials. Somebody comes in and asks for an area variance, you can deny it but you can't take the additional step and say oh yeah we're going to deny a use variance just in case you ever want one or we're going to do an interpretation that you have other problems with the property. That may have happened here, that may have not happened here. I was under the impression that no interpretation was ever asked for by the applicant. But let's assume for arguments sake that one was. If we make findings on a request where no proof was laid before you and you know, it's in large part the applicant's fault but I would suggest the Board has some some small obligation to develop the record before making findings or if not that then to deny based upon the fact that there is no proof before them rather than going out and making affirmative findings. And that looks to me like what happened here. We wound up with this denial of an interpretation without your having all the facts before you. So following that, like I mentioned to Mr. Hughes, we tried to go back to the Planning Board and the Planning Board tabled that request and said it would be better to come back and ask this Board to reopen. And that's what we are here for tonight. I'd suggest that there are new facts, facts that weren't considered the first time around, that there were misrepresentations or perhaps an improper presentation to this Board of the facts underlying this application. Not asking you tonight to make up your minds to grant the relief requested or to issue anything in regard to the interpretation if you give us a Public Hearing on this, we will further lay, lay before you the facts regarding the use variance and the proposed new use of that building and you can make a decision as to whether or not that should be allowed but we feel that and through no fault of this Board, I mean it's just the circumstances surrounding it, the original decision made on this wasn't a full and fair decision and so we're asking you at this time to reopen and allow us to come before you. And again, you may decide the exact same way but at least nobody can say that the Board didn't, you know, fully consider all of the applicant's contentions and all the facts surrounding it. I would add just one last thing. I know I've taken up more time than I should have already. This is a discretionary application and I think one of the things you should consider when you get this type of discretionary application is the nature of the relief that's being asked for. If this was a purely commercial use or if this was a cement factory going in a residential district you might be much less inclined to exercise your discretion but it's not. This is daycare. Daycare is something the Town desperately needs, particularly good daycare and it's not only daycare, it's daycare where you already have an existing building and you're asking to simply move one classroom to allow the place to be a nicer atmosphere and maybe be more attractive to people who need this type of use. And, when you look at the other things you're asked to approve I mean, huge projects this is a de minimus request really so I mean to ask for one more day from this Board, one more hearing on nights when you are here to 11 o'clock anyway, I mean it's the kind of thing I …and again I shouldn't be dispositive. You have to decide every thing on individual merits but a…I think it's the kind of thing that might make you considering everything lean more toward giving them one more hearing. So, that's our presentation.

Mr. Manley: I had a chance; while Mr. Gaba was summing up his conversation, just to pull the minutes. I was not at that meeting but I did want to clarify in the minutes it does, dated February 22nd, Chairperson Cardone says 'On the application of Vincent T. and Maria Marino the Building Blocks Daycare Center, first we'll address the interpretation, seeking an interpretation of the 1996 decision. Do I have discussion on that?' And then, there is subsequent discussion and there's a vote on the interpretation. And then subsequent to that there is a discussion and vote on the actual request for the use variance so I don't know if you didn't have an opportunity to…

Mr. Gaba: No, I didn't. That's the problem. If the Chairman had been a little less fastidious in looking over the notice or the referral you would have seen that a all we asked for in terms of the presentation was a use variance and if you hadn't ruled, if you hadn't ruled on the request for an interpretation we'd be free to say hay that's still an open issue let us go a second time either on referral or directly from the Building Department but because you ruled on it we need you to reopen. And what we're arguing to you tonight is that you ruled on it without having either a full or accurate presentation of the facts regarding the request for or the referral on interpretation and that's why we want to reopen.

Mr. Manley: It's my understanding though that when you initially presented that we never ruled on…that the Board never ruled on that, that they never took into consideration the interpretation. 

Mr. Gaba: No what I was saying was that the applicant never laid the facts regarding the interpretation before this Board.

Mr. Donovan: I think, I don't want to put words in your mouth but I think kind of, trying to piece this together since I wasn't here either is the Planning Board referred this for a specific purpose. And the application was submitted, the application didn't address that specific purpose, the Public Hearing didn't necessarily address that specific purpose but the Board's ruling did.

Mr. Hughes: Well it goes beyond that as well. And, I don't know if you've been able to have access to read all of the publications that went on through this proceeding but your predecessor was charged and asked question and literally cross examined to bring it to a head so that there would be no unknowns by the Board, the public or the applicants and he never proved what was necessary that is required by law. 

Mr. Gaba: I agree with that.

Mr. Hughes: I mean, you know, all of us here are educated by going to school and they tell us what to look for. We have our own counsel here; we have books to refer to. Everybody on the Board went out of their way to help if you will, get the prior representative to speak clearly and succinctly about how we got to this point and he didn't have it together.

Mr. Gaba: I think part of that though was that the facts leading up to the application were confused I think it goes…and I'm not going to point the finger at anyone person and I don't think that's right but I think that it goes back to the Building Department correctly citing them for violating the Building Code but incorrectly saying that they needed a variance. I think that's where the confusion came. And I'm not going to say that the applicant didn't do anything wrong. The applicant did but that's not the question. The question is did this Board, not through any fault of it's own mind you, but did this Board make an interpretation on a correct presentation of the accurate facts. I don't think that they did. And, I mean it's not the Boards fault that they didn't have the accurate facts before but the fact is it didn't and I think we've submitted some new facts regarding the history of this thing which again you may not change your mind at the end of the day but give us our day. 

Mr. Donovan: Procedurally what needs to happen if the Board wants to conduct a rehearing, there needs to be a motion, there needs to be a second and there needs to be a unanimous vote of all members present in order to conduct a rehearing. If you have further questions for the applicant or questions for me on the procedure that's in order as well.  

Mr. Hughes: Well I think that there's several people in the room at a disadvantage here. Individually some Board Members, individually maybe some of the attorneys that were involved with this if the story that you told this evening and if my memory serves me right you were the ZBA attorney when the original variance was granted? Could there have been a mistake on your part during that as well?

Mr. Gaba: Certainly not.

Mr. Hughes: Certainly not? I see so then how do we go for the three strikes, the foul ball on the fifth strike to reopen something where my opinion is that should never have been granted under the conditions that it was granted to begin with. So my suspicion is, is that you were wrong. Your suspicion is that is that everybody else was wrong and not to point the finger at anybody and I'm not saying that you're wrong. I'm saying that by what I read and I hope you've read as much as I've read about this particular case that your predecessor flew under the radar and got something granted that should have never been considered to be granted.

Mr. Gaba: Well you've raised some very interesting points and they very well be valid. I'm not prepared to speak to that tonight but I would say that there really are more issues to be raised at a public hearing on this where they can be fully vetted and addressed than on a simple request to reopen.

Mr. Hughes: Yea.

Mr. Gaba: I mean if you deny reopening the world will never know. If you allow us to come back then again you're not binding yourself to do anything but give us a chance.

Mr. Hughes: So you're looking for the fifth strike.

Mr. Gaba: Well it's not anything until you call it. You might call it a ball. You might call it a strike. I just want to get to the batters box.

Mr. Hughes: Heads I win, tails you loose? I mean what are we doing here?

Mr. Gaba: You are not obligated to do anything.

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Gaba: You are not obligated to do anything.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. as long as you understand that as well.

Mr. Gaba: Absolutely.

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Mr. Gaba: Representation the record.

Mr. McKelvey: That's the thing I remember too back then. The only thing that garage is supposed to be used for is storage.

Mr. Hughes: There were a lot of things to this, Steve, that I think that you are not aware.

Mr. Gaba: In regard to that let me just point that anytime somebody comes in for a use variance they are not going say, well I want to put fifty two kids in this building and you know what seven years from now I'm going to tear it down and put one hundred kids in there. It's always going to be the case that somebody comes in and says this is my plan, what I propose to do with this building and that building and there's an end to it then unless this Board imposes specific conditions for pivoting any expansion of existing buildings or expanding the intensity of the use, there is no limitation on it and you can come back as they did in Patty Cake Playhouse and build a bigger building. But the fact that we were using the shed to move the students in as opposed to putting an addition onto the building it is purely fortuitous. It's just because frankly it makes a hell of a lot more economic sense to use an existing building than to raze it and put on an addition but if we were here saying we want to put an addition onto the building to add a few children to it I don't think you'd be…if it was a use variance without any conditions in a position to say well, wait a minute the first time you came you never said anything about putting an addition on. That's just not the nature of granting use variances. Once it's granted it's the same thing or almost the same thing as a zoning change and you can expand the building. You can't change the use but you can expand the building to house the use. Here we're not doing either. It's the exact same use we're just moving the kids from one building to another. We're not changing the physical plan. We're not changing the use.

Mr. McKelvey: You are changing the use from storage to a classroom.

Mr. Gaba: It was always all childcare whether it was storage for childcare or not. It's not changing the use. The use of this property, the use for every inch of this property is daycare. And we could build a whole new building on it for daycare provided that we could meet the bulk requirements. It's not changing the use.

Mr. Hughes: There is testimony on the record that I've read that when the original use was granted they were told that they couldn't use that building for classrooms.

Mr. Gaba: Well I haven't seen any of it.

Mr. Hughes: Well I don't everything that goes on in the world either but I am telling you that that was testimony on the record.  

Mr. Gaba: And, you might be right. You might very well be right and believe me if that's the case, that's the case. But I'd like to have that done at a public hearing on this and then you'll the determination on the merits on a full correct record.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. Then well you're asking us to do something that ordinarily doesn't happen. Could we suggest that maybe everybody get a chance to read all the parts of the record and then maybe…?

Mr. Gaba: No problem with that at all.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. then…

Mr. Gaba: If you want to put it over, no problem.

Mr. Hughes: Then if you do that and you get to see and the minutes that were at that meeting…I believe that it was Mr. Kelson that was the representative at the time and that he was quite convinced that he had it all covered and he was charged to explain his positions and methodologies and stuff and he couldn't come up with the answers. So it looked very bad for your applicant because the attorney didn't have it together. I'm not…I, first of all I don't want to blow anybody's mind either and if you have to have a unanimous vote and you're depending on me to be part of that this evening not so informed you might be disappointed. I want to be that fair with you.

Mr. Gaba: That's fair.

Mr. Hughes: If you want to put it off where all of us can become more informed…

Mr. Gaba: No problem.

Mr. Hughes: …then you may have a chance at reopening.

Mr. Gaba: No problem with that.

Mr. Hughes: Counsel? Do I have my foot in my mouth?

Mr. Donovan: No.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. as long as you're happy with it, I have to be fair with you. I have to be fair with everybody in the room.

Mr. Gaba: No problem.

Mr. Donovan: Not with regard to that statement.

Mr. Hughes: Yep.

Mr. Donovan: I'm not going to say you don't have your foot in your mouth with regard to other statements.

Mr. Hughes: Yes. Well I can change. I can put the other one in for a while if you want. I would like some more time for you to become more informed with what I've read then I believe you would understand why I'm telling what I'm telling you.

Chairperson Cardone: And I think we also need more time to review the record.

Mr. Hughes: I think everyone should read it because it was quite a circus. It was a circus when it was granted. It was a circus when it was reviewed and after a while when he got going the only thing I was confused about was how his nose wasn't growing.

Mr. Gaba: I can't communicate with you directly unless counsel allows that so…

Mr. Hughes: We don't run that tight a ship here, I'm sure.

Mr. Donovan: What is it that you'd like to do?

Mr. Hughes: I would like everybody to read what I know and what I've read. Minutes are available and it went on, I mean, other Members will tell you there was a lot of things there that were left to be desired.

Ms. Drake: Which minutes are they, which meeting, which year is what I'm…?

Mr. Hughes: I think it was a year and a half ago in March or February.

Mr. Manley: Actually the secretary has the minutes. I was just perusing them so you can probably…they're probably also on-line too. Aren't they?

Ms. Gennarelli: Yes, they are on-line.

Mr. Hughes: They are on-line.

Ms. Drake: Which month is that Jim?

Ms. Gennarelli: That would have been February of 2007.

Mr. Gaba: One other thing in regard to that, if the minutes are germane, they probably are something that weren't before you at the Public Hearing you held last time and if you are considering new evidence anyway? Isn't that the kind of thing you would want to hold?     

Chairperson Cardone: He's talking about the minutes from the…when they were here.

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Gaba: Oh, oh, the prior…I'm sorry I misunderstood.

Chairperson Cardone: in 2007?

Mr. Donovan: But I would also urge the Board, because I think Mr. Gaba has provided us with a copy of the original use variance decision issued in 1996. I think the Board should take a careful look at that as well.

Mr. Hughes: There may even be a piggyback in there too and it might not be with the people that are the applicants today. I don't know what went on in there but I do know that I remember reading something other than what you cited tonight. 

Chairperson Cardone: And I'm wondering if that was from the Planning Board.

Mr. Hughes: It may have been, I mean I can read three thousand sheets a month.

Chairperson Cardone: Because I also remember reading something on that. 

Mr. Hughes: It's hard to keep them all pinned down. 

Mr. Gaba: Well will we be on the agenda for next month then, or…?

Chairperson Cardone: I have no problem with that.

Mr. Donovan: Well you're going to need to take action, either say yes or no to the request, so you should put it on the agenda.

Chairperson Cardone: Right. 

Mr. Gaba: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Hughes: So then can we make the information flow back and forth so we all have time to review it?

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Ms. Gennarelli: If I haven't provided it to everybody already, let me know.

Mr. Donovan: I have what I need.

Ms. Gennarelli: You have it right? I thought I had made up packets for everybody.

Chairperson Cardone: We have a lot of paperwork.

Ms. Gennarelli: I am sorry I am flooding you with all this paperwork.

Mr. Hughes: My file on this is this thick. Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: The only thing I'd like to see are the Planning Board minutes.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. from which year?

Chairperson Cardone: '96.

Mr. Donovan: '96

Mr. McKelvey: Yes, go all the way back…that's what I want to see.
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ROCK CUT ASSOCIATES, LLC 

43 MOUNTAINVIEW AVE, NBGH

(ESTATE OF PARANT)


(14-1-14) A/R ZONE__________________

Chairperson Cardone: The next item was Rock Cut Associates. I have a letter here from Vincent Doce Associates. 

           As you may recall, by Decision dated July 26, 2007, Rock Cut Associates received area variances to permit construction of a single-family dwelling on the above referenced parcel, which is 43 Mountainview Avenue. Due to the market slow down and it has been difficult to find a purchaser for the premises. For that reason we respectfully request a twelve-month extension to the approval. Kindly place this matter on the next available agenda and advise the undersigned if the Board requires an appearance or additional supporting materials or documentation. Thank you in advance for your anticipated courtesies. 

Actually they can only get a six-month extension.

Mr. Hughes: One time.

Chairperson Cardone: They are entitled to one six-month extension, which would take them to July the 26th.

Mr. Manley: I wouldn't have an issue with that. We are already almost there anyway.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion to grant a six-month extension?

Mr. McKelvey: I make a motion we grant a six-month extension.

Mr. Hughes: With the named date of expiration.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. McKelvey: Which will expire in July of 2008.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll Call

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ronald Hughes: Yes



          James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes



      Ruth Eaton: Absent

Michael Maher: Absent
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JOSEPH PALMERONE-NEWBURGH        NE CORNER RTE 17K & RTE 300,NBGH

RETAIL DEVELOPERS, LLC                      (97-2-34) IB ZONE

Chairperson Cardone: The next item on the agenda is Palmerone Farms. And we received a communication from Developers Realty Corporation and I think everybody has had a chance to look at it. What has happened is when they appeared before the Zoning Board they gave one location for a pylon sign and at this point they need to relocate that sign. So, I guess I'd better read what is written here, so we all know what we are talking about.

            The applicant has previously received approval from the Zoning Board of Appeals on January 25, 2007 to install a second pylon as part of its retail project. The applicant now seeks to relocate the sign to the other side of the proposed 17K access to the project. During the design and coordination of the access with the New York State Thruway Authority the parcel size and shape changed causing the approved sign location to need adjustment from Thruway property to the applicant's property. At a recent work session with the Town's outside consultants there was some discussion about whether that applicant needed to appear before the ZBA again to relocate the pylon sign. We believe the ZBA approval was for the permission to construct a second pylon sign but that the exact location of the sign would be subject to the review and approval of the Planning Board. It is my understanding that the applicant does not need to appear in front of the Zoning Board of Appeals again and that any relocation is an issue for the Planning Board.

And I need to know how the Board feels about this.

Mr. Manley: I hate to take the wind out of their sails but it's my recollection that approval was based on the plans that were submitted.

Chairperson Cardone: That's correct.

Mr. Manley: Any change to the plans, changes the entire project as it's presented and as slight as they may feel it is I think that we would require anybody to come back before this Board to re-present their case. That's just my belief.

Chairperson Cardone: And, I agree with you.

Mr. Hughes: Yes, I concur with that as well. And until they resolve that situation with the 

two DOT, let me rephrase that, the Thruway and the New York State DOT right of ways that exist there and pin that down I don't think we should touch it. I don't think the Planning Board should touch it either because they may or may not get that entranceway and they may or not if what they're saying in the letter about the auction and someone else outbids them on the auction which could very well happen.

Chairperson Cardone: That's their decision to make. What we need to let them know is whether or not we feel they need to come back to us and I feel that they do need to come back to us.

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: The issue is if they do want to change the location of that pylon sign they need to come back to us.

Chairperson Cardone: Exactly.

Mr. Manley: Unfortunately that's what I think because our decision was our decision and…

Mr. Hughes: Yes. I mean that's not hardball playing against them, its just common sense they… 

Mr. Manley: I mean that's like if you approved a building to go in a particular spot with so many feet of variance and they decide to relocate the building well now that's a material change. 

Mr. Donovan: I mean there is something that is called a field change if it was going to move two feet, you know, but I don't know what the scale is and what they've given us but it’s a lot more than two feet.

Mr. Hughes: 45 or so.

Mr. Donovan: Yes.

Mr. Manley: It's substantial.

Ms. Drake: So do we need a motion on that?

Mr. Donovan: It can't hurt since there is no one here tonight to advise. I mean there is no one here on behalf of Developers Realty Corporation that's here so I think you could adopt a motion authorizing the Chair to correspond with the applicant indicating that if they want to move the pylon sign they need to reapply to the Zoning Board.

Mr. Manley: So moved.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ronald Hughes: Yes



          James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes



      Ruth Eaton: Absent

Michael Maher: Absent
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Chairperson Cardone: Is there any other business to be considered?

(No response)

Chairperson Cardone: I haven't had a chance to read the minutes. I don't know if anyone else has had time to read them so I think we had better hold off until next month so that we've read them. Is that all right with everyone? I need a motion to adjourn the meeting.

Mr. McKelvey: So moved.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All those in favor?

Aye All

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

(No response)

Chairperson Cardone: The meeting is adjourned.
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